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TERTIARY BURSARY STUDENTS

15 154

ALUMNI

0 346

STAFF

2 16

GAUTENG HOLIDAY & SATURDAY SCHOOL LEARNERS

0 885

WESTERN CAPE HOLIDAY SCHOOL PROGRAMME LEARNERS

00 127

THE TOMORROW TRUST IS A NON-PROFIT ORGANISATION  

CREATED IN 2005 TO SUPPORT ORPHANED AND VULNERABLE  

CHILDREN AND YOUTH. WE DESIGN AND DELIVER WORLD-CLASS  

HOLISTIC EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMES SUPPORTING OUR  

BENEFICIARIES, FROM THE PLAYGROUND TO THEIR PROFESSIONS.  

WE WORK WITH THE GOVERNMENT, BUSINESSES, AND ORDINARY  

SOUTH AFRICANS TO REALISE THE VISION OF A SOCIETY WITH  

CONSCIOUS AND HOLISTICALLY EDUCATED LEADERS.

CORPORATE GRADUATES SUPPORTED

0 36

YES YOUTH SUPPORTED

0 40
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AT THE END OF MARCH 2021, 
TOMORROW TRUST HAD RECEIVED 
THE SAD NEWS OF JAMES DONALD 
STEPPING DOWN AS TOMORROW 
TRUST CEO.

James had shaped Tomorrow Trust over the last three years 
and built a strong team, processes and re-energised the 
board that would take the organisation from infancy to 
adolescence in its 16th year. With seeing through the three-
year strategies of “Launching Tomorrow”,- James had left 
the organisation with a team that was capable of taking the 
organisation forward and put in place a General Committee 
circle (GCC) that would work collaboratively together for 
the betterment of the organisation, beneficiaries and our 
partners. The GCC committee, a strong collective made up 
of our head of departments, continued with leadership, 
governance and fundraising efforts. James, we thank you 
for your service, passion and heart during your time with us, 
and we know that our paths will meet again.

Despite the changes, 2021 highlighted our strength, 
resilience and agility as an organisation. We were 
acknowledged as a semifinalist of the CSI Legacy Awards. 
We reinforced our partnerships with increased funding 
opportunities and utilized our SHIFT ICT programme 
to reach more beneficiaries through digital connection 
and access. Tomorrow Trust has become more than the 
person heading up the organisation but a brand known 
for its growth, compassion and social justice in providing 
educational opportunities to the children of South Africa. 

TARYN RAE

We want to dedicate our success of 2021 to our board 
members, who relentlessly supported and guided 
us through the year. A special appreciation goes to 
Jack Phalane, our Chairman, and Roy Midlane. They 
unwaveringly provided weekly support and guidance as we 
navigated through our change.

We look forward to taking Tomorrow Trust to new heights 
and growing our reach to serve more beneficiaries around 
South Africa in the coming years.

Warm regards,

 Taryn

MESSAGE FROM THE 

ACTING 
GENERAL 
MANAGER
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THE SUCCESS OF ANY 
ORGANIZATION DEPENDS ON 
VARIOUS FACTORS, INCLUDING 
LEADERSHIP, HUMAN CAPITAL AND 
FINANCIAL RESOURCES.

 

With 2021 being the year it was, these success factors were 
exemplified.  The Tomorrow Trust continued to navigate 
the Covid-19 pandemic to ensure the best outcome for our 
beneficiaries, stakeholders, and partners. The Tomorrow 
Trust continued to strive for the best educational results to 
ensure that our beneficiaries’ social and financial situation 
was not worsened by the abnormal circumstances, thus 
widening the gap created by inequality, lack of access to 
resources and the worsening economic situation.  The 
Tomorrow Trust team has demonstrated their passion and 
dedication to the core business of the Tomorrow Trust by 
being there for its beneficiaries. The education programmes 
were adjusted to respond to the prevailing circumstances. 
However, the substance of the programmes still stayed true 
to the core purpose of our organizational mandate.  

In 2021, the Tomorrow Trust experienced a change in 
leadership. The then CEO of the Tomorrow Trust, James 
Donald, had to make a difficult decision to leave the 
Tomorrow Trust and pursue an opportunity within the 
education sector.  James led the Tomorrow Trust for three 
years, and he remains connected to the Tomorrow Trust.  
Under James’ leadership, the Tomorrow Trust reiterated and 
further advocated for the belief that “all children, including 
the orphaned and vulnerable, have a real chance of success 
in academics and life.” 

The change in leadership did not detract the Tomorrow 
Trust from its stated mandate.  The staff of the Tomorrow 
Trust and the board ensured that the Tomorrow Trust 
continued to deliver.  We experienced the passion of all the 
staff members who continued with their work regardless of 

The Board is proud of how the executive 
team navigated all the challenges that 2021 
brought.  We saw the Tomorrow Trust being 
nominated for the CSI Legacy Awards. The 
Tomorrow Trust’s Tertiary Programme is 
recognized as a front runner within the NGO 
space, with a 95% pass rate, 88% throughput 
and a 2% dropout rate over the last five years 
among our tertiary students. The Tomorrow 
Trust has 364 Alumni, of which 80% remained 
in full-time employment throughout the 
Covid-19 pandemic. 

We want to thank our partners and 
stakeholders who support our worthy cause 
and continue to partner with the Tomorrow 
Trust. Thank you for staying committed to 
building our beautiful country in partnership 
with the Tomorrow Trust. 

Thank you.  

 Jack
Jack Phalane 
Chairman

JACK PHALANE

the changes. In this process, we saw one of our long-serving 
members, Ms Taryn Rae, stepping up to lead the Tomorrow 
Trust team.  Ms Rae has been with the Tomorrow Trust for 
13 years.  She has been central to the change the Tomorrow 
Trust brings to our beneficiaries. Once again, I am grateful 
to every member of the Board of the Tomorrow Trust.  The 
Board members offered their skills and time at no cost to the 
Tomorrow Trust to ensure that the Tomorrow Trust operated 
efficiently, optimally, and observed corporate governance 
rules. We are blessed to have a board that is passionate 
about the vision and mission of the Tomorrow Trust and 
who continues to serve by providing guidance, hours and 
counsel to the Tomorrow Trust and the executive team to 
better the organisation.   

The success of the Tomorrow Trust does not lie in any 
individual trustee or staff member but in the collective. 
What guides and will continue to drive the Tomorrow Trust 
is the commitment to good governance, professionalism 
and transparency. The Board embraces and is committed to 
these principles. 

MESSAGE FROM THE 

CHAIRMAN
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OUR VISION IS FOR A

JUST TOMORROW

A society with conscious and holistically educated leaders; 
where all children, including the orphaned and vulnerable, have 
a real chance of success in academics and life.

AT TOMORROW TRUST, WE PRIDE OURSELVES  
IN THE WAY WE WORK, LEADING BY EXAMPLE  
WITH OUR CORE VALUES OF

GROWTH, COMPASSION  
AND SOCIAL JUSTICE

OUR MISSION IS TO UNLOCK SOUTH AFRICA’S BEST 
TOMORROW, THROUGH HOLISTIC EDUCATION TODAY:

FROM THE PLAYGROUND 
TO PROFESSIONAL

OUR

VISION

OUR

VALUES

OUR

MISSION
TOMORROW TRUST VISION AND MISSION SUPPORT THE NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (NDP):  

VISION 2030 PROVIDES EQUAL OPPORTUNITY THROUGH A HOLISTIC EDUCATIONAL FRAMEWORK  

TO SUPPORT FUTURE JOB CREATION, ELIMINATE POVERTY, REDUCE INEQUALITY,  

AND GROW AN INCLUSIVE ECONOMY.  
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COVID 19 HAS DEEPENED 
EDUCATION INEQUALITIES, 
LEAVING CHILDREN FROM A 
DISADVANTAGED BACKGROUND 
3 TO 4 YEARS BEHIND CHILDREN 
FROM PRIVILEGED BACKGROUNDS.

Apartheid led to suffering for over 40 years in the education 
sector due to poor management, furthered by segregation 
that robbed many students of opportunities.

Although 1994 brought about democracy, which would, in 
turn, suggest an improvement in the education system, this 
has not prevailed successfully.  Inadequate education is a 
symptom of inequality in the South African community. 

This inequality continues to be littered across the 
education system, characterised by crumbling infrastructure, 
overcrowded classrooms, and lacking academic resources, 
disadvantaging children, especially economically vulnerable 
children. 

COVID19 AND EDUCATION

During 2021, learners were still attending school on 
rotational timetables, resulting in learners missing about 
50% of the school year.

As many as 750 000 children have dropped out of school, 
having tripled from 230 000 pre-pandemic. Many of the 
learners who remain in the schooling do not have the 
years learning that will enable them to do well as they 
move up into the next grade. These learners will move up 
with little understanding forcing them to drop out earlier 
than expected, never having the opportunity to enter 
tertiary education, and reducing their chances of securing 
employment. This is detrimental to the South African 
economy, sadly contributing to the unemployment rate of 
39.9% in 2021, with 66.5% of youth not skilled to enter our 
economy.

EDUCATION
 IN SOUTH AFRICA
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THROUGH OUR KNOWLEDGE 

THAT HOLISTIC EDUCATION IS 

AN ESSENTIAL INGREDIENT TO 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND 

THE REDUCTION OF POVERTY, 

TOMORROW TRUST IS COMMITTED TO 

ALTERING THE COURSE OF EDUCATION 

IN OUR COUNTRY.



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2021 15

Tomorrow Trust has a long-standing relationship with the 
South African Department of Social Development. They provide 
Tomorrow Trust with funded NPOs who assist us in selecting 
our children in the Junior and Senior Programme (Grade R-12). 
Some of our children are also sourced from township school 
feeding schemes.

The Tomorrow Trust Tertiary students are selected from an 
online application called Leap.ly for the Tertiary Programme. 
They are considered based on financial status and career 
sustainability, highlighting perseverance and potential as crucial 
components.

 TOMORROW TRUST

BENEFICIARIES 
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 TOMORROW TRUST

GEOGRAPHICAL 
FOOTPRINT

LIMPOPO

GAUTENG

MPUMALANGA

KWAZULU-
NATAL

EASTERN CAPE

WESTERN CAPE

NORTHERN CAPE

FREE STATE

NORTH-WEST

GAUTENG 

981
WESTERN CAPE

165
EASTERN CAPE

20

TOMORROW TRUST BENEFICIARIES DISTRIBUTION:
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Tomorrow Trust’s Holistic educational programmes 
include academic advancement, psychosocial support 
and development, career enlightenment, access to 
digital opportunities, and competencies to orphaned and 
vulnerable children and youth. 

These programmes are offered to orphaned and 
vulnerable children and youth, from playground to 
professional. Our holistic educational programmes are 
the catalyst of change that assists us to fulfil our vision of 
creating conscious leaders for Tomorrow.

 WHAT WE

DO

Junior Holiday 
School Programme 

accommodating  
Grade R- 7

Tertiary Programme 
accommodating 

tertiary students in 
various fields

Alumni  
Programme

Senior Saturday 
and Holiday 

School Programme 
accommodating  

Grade 8-12

TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2021 17
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MESSAGES OF 
APPRECIATION
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My experience with the programme has 
been great.
 
For the very first time my daughter is 
part of a programme that does not just 
support her academically but it supports 
her emotionally and it really keeps her 
going. 

As a parent I love how she has improved 
and has grown to think outside the 
box and view things with a different 
perspective.
 
I appreciate the programme for helping 
my child and my family.
 
I am glad that the programme meets me 
halfway as an unemployed parent and 
helps my child whenever possible. I am 
grateful for the opportunity…
Re leboga go menagane.

It has been an amazing experience for me 
to engage with learners from different 
schools and backgrounds through 
Tomorrow Trust. 

What gives me more fulfilment is to see 
Future leaders, who otherwise could 
have NO FUTURE had it not been for 
Tomorrow Trust’s CARING policy, realise 
their Dreams.

Keep the excellent work Tomorrow Trust! 
May The Almighty continue to bless you.

I’ve been with the Tomorrow Trust for 
five years and I have learnt that a candle 
looses nothing by lighting another 
candle. 

They’ve also taught me that if your 
dreams don’t scare you, then they’re 
not big enough. Through that I’ve learnt 
not to aim for the sky while there are 
footprints on the moon. 

I’ve learnt to dream big and always put a 
smile in someone’s face.

My experience with Tomorrow Trust 
has been an adventure, socially and 
academically. 

In the duration of the year I was part of 
the program, I learnt a lot about myself, 
and the boys and girls I shared campus 
with on Saturdays. 

A quote I would associate my experience 
at Tomorrow Trust is that individual 
commitment to a group effort is what 
makes teamwork. 

My experience has been mind blowing! 
I found something I didn’t know I needed. 
A part of me became whole and I have 
been happier since I started. 

Teaching high-school learners sounded 
very scary at first, what made it easier is 
the discipline the program has already 
instilled in the learners. I teach digital 
literacy however I quickly realized that 
they needed more than that. I made sure 
to customise my lessons to cater for their 
vocabulary and life skills. I teach and I am 
taught. 
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ACADEMIC 
ADVANCEMENT

Tomorrow Trust has 90min sessions dedicated to the 
academic advancement of each learner. Qualified and 
passionate educators are recruited to teach and facilitate 
the development of the chosen Tomorrow Trust subjects. 

We aim to promote the successful transition between the 
developmental & academic stages of the learner, with 
improved results. We aim to ensure that each learner passed 
each grade with averages above 50%.

Below is the subject Tomorrow Trust focuses on at each 
stage of a learners progression:
• Grade R-3:  develop Literacy and Numeracy
• Grade 4-7:  develop English language skills 

and Mathematics
• Grade 8 and 9:  supplementary academic support 

in English, Mathematics, Natural 
Sciences

• Grade 10, 11 and 12:  supplementary academic support 
in English, Mathematics, Life 
Science and Physical Sciences

PSYCHOSOCIAL 
SUPPORT AND 
DEVELOPMENT 

Tomorrow Trust understands the importance of 
each learner’s psychosocial development. Part of the 
programme is to provide space, tools, and debrief sessions 
to develop and support our learner’s psychosocial well-
being.  

We aim to have a child who freely explores through play 
and is confident in facing challenges and making choices. 
A child who demonstrates self-confidence independence 

During the pandemic, it was essential for Tomorrow 
Trust to develop a structured, personalised mentorship 
programme. 

Named by our 2020 Grade 10s, the Seeds in Nature 
Mentorship programme provides an opportunity for our 
senior learners (Grade 10-12) to be mentored by a caring 
adult. Issues such as personal identity, self-confidence 
and self-esteem, skills development, and interpersonal 
experiences are a few areas that learners feel they would 
benefit from exploring in a safe and consistent mentorship 
relationship.

Therefore, the Tomorrow Trust mentorship programme was 
developed and structured to allow volunteering mentors 
to support our learners through a virtual collaborative 
mentorship journey.

We aim to assist learners to completely understand what 
career paths they have selected and how they align with 
their ability, personality, interest and level of preparedness. 
We want a learner to emerge with a strong sense of self, 
a feeling of independence and a wealth of knowledge on 
various careers. A learner who has a clear idea of their role 
in society and how they would want to contribute to the SA 
economy.

• Grade 8: workshops on Introduction of Careers & 
Mentorship

• Grade 9: workshops on subject choices and 
understanding self and mentorship

• Grade 10: job shadowing, career exploration sessions, 
exposure to different working environments 
and mentorship

• Grade 11: Career psychometric assessments focused 
on personality, interests and abilities, job 
shadowing, career exploration sessions, 
exposure to different working environments 
and mentorship

can accomplish tasks with ease. A learner who has a cheerful 
disposition shows personal exploration, matured identity, 
and sexual maturity that has a conscious awareness of 
oneself and their environment.

At each phase, we look at providing the following 
workshops:
• Grade R-3:  Expressions and TLT workshops
• Grade 4-7:  Expressions and TLT workshops
• Grade 8 & 9: Man in Mirror, FIERCE and TLT 

workshops
• Grade 10, 11 and 12:  TLT workshops

Based on needs, Tomorrow Trust creates tailor-made 
workshops that fit the condition of the learners and the 
group dynamics.

CAREER 
ENLIGHTENMENT

Tomorrow Trust Career Programme is called Stepping 
Stones Career Programme and it aims to explore the 
various elements which go into identifying and selecting 
one’s career path. 

This programme starts in Grade 8 and guides our learners 
to understand themselves as individuals (personality 
characteristics, interests, and values) and explores this along 
with a wide range of career options, both traditional and 
non-traditional.

As part of self-development and our career programme, we 
have introduced a Mentorship programme to all our senior 
learners.  Mentorship has been beneficial for both mentees 
and mentors in various ways. For mentees, it provides an 
opportunity to receive support and guidance. At the same 
time, it is an opportunity for mentors to reinforce knowledge, 
enhance leadership skills, and give back.

• Grade 12: job shadowing, career exploration sessions, 
exposure to different working environments, 
an introduction on how to apply to university 
and mentorship

DIGITAL  
INTEGRATION

Tomorrow Trust’s digital programme is called SHIFT.  
SHIFT (Digital) (‘Skills, Holism, and Innovation for 
Tomorrow’) aims at guiding and preparing learners to 
solve problems, think critically, work collaboratively and 
creatively, function in a digital and information-driven 
world, apply digital and ICT skills and transfer these skills 
to solve everyday problems. 

The SHIFT programme houses various robotics, coding, 
e-learning, digital literacy, academic enhancement 
apps, access to ICT connection, devices, data, digital 
entrepreneurship. This programme improves access to an 
education appropriate for the 4th Industrial Revolution 
while advancing 21st-century skills and social inclusion 
in the digital economy. The tangible key outcome of this 
programme is to equip our learners with 20th-century skills 
that will empower them for the 21st Century workplace.

This programme supports over 180 learners within the 
Gauteng and Western Cape Province. The SHIFT programme 
is held and facilitated within the Tomorrow Trust Holiday and 
Saturday School Programme hosting suburb school. 

Below outlines the Digital integrations we have allocated 
for each Grade: 
• Grade 1: Reading Eggs
• Grade 4: Maths Seeds
• Grade 8 and 9: Coding, Robotics and Digital 

Literacy.

 TOMORROW TRUST

HOLISTIC APPROACH
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The Holiday and Saturday School Programme provides 
additional educational support, academic advancement, 
psychosocial support and development, career 
enlightenment and digital integration to orphaned and 
vulnerable children and youth during the Holiday period 
and on Saturdays to the Grade R to Grade 12 learners.

TOMORROW TRUST HOLIDAY AND SATURDAY 
SCHOOL PROGRAMMES ARE DIVIDED INTO:
• ECD (Grade R (K1))
• Foundation Phase (Grade 1-3)
• Intermediate Phase (Grade 4-7)
• Senior Phase (Grade 8-12)

The Holiday and Saturday School Programmes provide a 
safe learning environment where learners are guaranteed 
three nutritious meals (breakfast, snacks, and a cooked 
lunch during their attendance). Learners are transported 
to the host venues whereby Tomorrow Trust facilitates 
the various programmes. Tomorrow Trust aims to inspire 
learners to break free from their home environments and 
become driven in growing and developing themselves 
academically. 

Each learner who participates in the Holiday and Saturday 
School Programme receives a stationery pack that includes 
basic materials such as pens, pencils, a scientific calculator, 
and a math set, contributing to their learning. We also 
have study material and guides to support teaching and 
resources that enhance class activities.

We have four primary principles in the daily timetable, 
which is interchangeable as the learner advances to each 
new grade. These principals are academic advancement, 
psychosocial support and development, career 
enlightenment and digital integration. 

HOLIDAY AND  
SATURDAY SCHOOL
PROGRAMME

885

107

THESE PROGRAMMES SERVICE  
THE FOLLOWING PROVINCES:
1. Gauteng: 885 learners
2.  Western Cape: 107 learners

ACADEMIC 
ADVANCEMENT

PSYCHOSOCIAL 
SUPPORT

DIGITAL 
INTEGRATION

CAREER 
ENLIGHTENMENT
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STRATEGIC 
PARTNERSHIP
Tomorrow Trust has partnered with the Gauteng 
Department of Social Development to provide their 
registered NGO with an opportunity to participate in 
the Tomorrow Trust Junior Holiday and Saturday School 
Programme.  This is a sustainable model to break the 
cycle of poverty and encourage orphaned and vulnerable 
children to reach their full potential. 

Department of Social Development registered NGOs that 
Tomorrow Trust works with:
• PUSH – Perservere Until Something Happens
• Crystal Fountain
• Nanga Vhuthilo
• Tsoga Sechaba Community Project
• Klipspruit West Family Centre
• Khayalethu Family Crisis Centre
• Sizanani Home-Based Care
• Abangani Enkosini

WHAT MAKES  
OUR HOLIDAY AND 
SATURDAY SCHOOL 
PROGRAMME UNIQUE?

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
We are continuously looking at new methodologies and 
pedagogy to support learners in realising their true potential. 

UNIQUE INTEGRATED SUPPORT 
Includes career enlightenment, psychosocial support and 
development and digital integration that helps the child 
develop wholly.

BELIEVES IN ASSISTING THE CHILDREN  
TO REALISE THEIR POTENTIAL
The programme is not meant for top-performing learners but 
accepts learners who are performing at an average of 40% and 
supports them to improve their performance to become top-
performing learners.

MODEL OF SUSTAINABILITY
A cohort of Grade 8-12 learners have been with the Tomorrow 
Trust Holiday and Saturday School Programme since Primary 
School.

INTEGRATED ICT
The programme has integrated ICT as a cutting-edge 
educational approach, advancing learners in the 4th Industrial 
Revolution, providing digital-focused initiatives and developing 
soft skills such as problem-solving, creativity, and critical 
thinking. 

PSYCHOSOCIAL WORKSHOPS 
We believe in unlocking a child’s potential by focusing on 
psychosocial workshops, developing emotional intelligence and 
life skills, supporting their milestones. This is provided to Grade 
R (K1) to Grade 12 and is integrated into the programme. 
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GAUTENG JUNIOR 
HOLIDAY AND 
SATURDAY SCHOOL

The Junior Holiday & Saturday School Programme (Grade 
R (K1)-7) focuses on developing Numeracy Skills and 
English Language development building blocks. The 
programme reinforces learning through play. 

FOUNDATION PHASE
GRADE R(K1)
Focusing on Learning through Play

As research shows, play is an integral part of the classroom 
at this level because it helps develop the child in ways 
that other pedagogies and strategies cannot. Our Grade 
R learners do much playing, drawing, colouring, cutting, 
painting, etc. – these skills are crucial to ensure that learners 
are ready for Grade 1. We have partnered with Care for 
Education, which has provided our educators with LEGO 
ABC training and tools.

SOCIO-ECONOMIC CONDITIONS HINDER PROGRESS
South African achievement continues to be unequal and 
socially graded. Achievement gaps continue to be linked 
to socio-economic backgrounds, spatial location, attending 
fee-paying or no-fee schools, and the province of residence. 
Learners attending fee-paying schools achieve much higher 
scores than learners in no-fee schools. The achievement gap 
between learners attending fee-paying and no-fee schools 
is 109 points for mathematics and 150 for Science. This is 
depicted by the inequality gap, leading to different early 
educational environments for young children—the extant 
literature points to the importance of early numeracy and 
literacy development and later academic achievement.

Learners performed better in items that required selecting 
a response (multiple choice question) than in items where 
they had to write a reply (constructed-response). Learners 
were unable to write descriptions or explanations. Learners 
must be given writing exercises in class. The national 
reading strategy must be expanded to become a reading 
and writing strategy. 

Good quality Early Childhood Development (ECD) 
programmes offer another significant contextual boost 
for learners. Pre-school attendance in South Africa is 
almost universal, with nearly nine out of every ten learners 
having some form of schooling before Grade 1. The more 
preschool education received by learners in South Africa and 
internationally, the higher their average mathematics score. 

Tomorrow Trust Junior Holiday and Saturday School 
Programme are designed to integrate academic, 
psychosocial and digital support to support and advance 

the learner’s potential as they move up each grade.  Every 
year the Tomorrow Trust conducts a baseline assessment 
on all the learners that are part of the programme. This is 
done at the beginning and end of each year. In 2021 we 
introduced the use of psychometric assessments called 
ESSI and VASSI that would help us identify how behind our 
learners are due to the significant schooling time missed 
during the 2020 COVID year. 

These new assessments were set to be implemented over a 
year to create a curriculum specifically designed to evaluate 
and bridge the academic loss from 2020. The pre-test was 
conducted in February 2021 and the post-test in November 
2021 on the junior learners who are a part of the Tomorrow 
Trust Holiday and Saturday School Programme. 

The ESSI assessment is an English reading, and 
spelling proficiency test and the VASSI assessment 
is a Mathematics proficiency test. The purpose of 
selecting these assessments as a baseline was to provide 
standardisation across our programmes and compare 
individual learners’ scores to the population norms and 
group norms. The standardised population norms allow 
for representation of the general population and allow for 
the location of an individual’s ability relative to the general 
population. 

The tests used were developed for the South African people 
and are normed against the Department of Basic Education’s 
curriculum. Group norms are the subgroup to which an 
individual belongs; this compares an individual learner’s 
results to the overall grade.   

  HOLIDAY AND SATURDAY SCHOOL PROGRAMME

 PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

Teachers at the end of training were 

able to facilitate playful learning at the 

holiday school. It was straightforward for 

Maths. There was excitement and joy in every 

class you went into as learners wanted to 

show their skills of understanding how they 

could learn using Lego.

– Thandi Sokujika – Stakeholder Lead

FOUNDATION & 
INTERMEDIATE PHASE 
GRADES 1-7

Developing Literacy, Numeracy, Emotional 
Regulation and fun through digital inclusion.

In 2020, South Africa participated in the Trends in 
International Mathematics and Science Study (TIMSS) 
2015 and 2019, at the Grade 5 level, to monitor educational 
progress in the primary education system. TIMSS was 
conducted for the first time at the Grade 5 level in South 
Africa in 2015 and then as part of the TIMSS 2019 cycle. A 
total of 64 countries and entities took part in this study, and 
South Africa was one of the lowest-performing countries. 

The TIMSS 2019 mathematics and science achievement 
scores are 374 and 324 TIMSS points, respectively. Regarding 
ability levels, 37% of South Africam learners demonstrated 
basic mathematical knowledge, and 28% indicated that they 
acquired basic science knowledge. 

DUPLO Lego boxes 
received and 
incorporated into 
Tomorrow Trust 
Junior Programme

28

Foundation and 
Intermediate 
teachers trained18
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The result does reflect improvement. However, further 
intervention is needed to ensure that we can bridge the gap 
of learning. The VASSI is a mathematics proficiency test. The 
VASSI was developed to help isolate mathematics problems 
at a young age. There is a high correlation between the 
ability to read and spell and mathematics proficiency. 

The ESSI is a reading and spelling test. This test determines 
a child’s reading and spelling abilities; indicating the grade 
at which the learner can read. 

The test is based on the assumption that learners’ ability 
to read and write correctly is a valid criterion for their 
achievement levels in school subjects and more specifically 
language subjects. Learners, who experience reading 
and spelling problems at school, also tend to experience 

The rationale for the VASSI is that if children are struggling to 
be active mathematical thinkers and cannot construct and 
make sense of what they are doing in mathematics, the test 
can then help identify and address the problem. 

learning problems that affect subsequent achievement and 
scholastic progress.

A screening test is first administered to determine what 
grade level the learner should be tested at. Learners then 
complete an individual spelling and reading test. For 
example, a learner could be in grade 5 but read and spell at 
a grade 2 level. The learner will then be tested on the grade 
2 reading and spelling.VASSI – MATHEMATICS  

PROFICIENCY ASSESSMENT  
GROUP RESULTS

GRADE PRE-ASSESSMENT (FEBRUARY 2021) POST-ASSESSMENT (NOVEMBER 2021)

Grade 1
100% of grade 1 learners were unable to complete the 
test. 

84% of grade 1 learners were unable to complete the 
test.

16% of learners performed at a grade 1 level.

Grade 2 100% of grade 2 learners were unable to complete the 
test.

92% of grade 2 learners were unable to complete 
the test. This may be due to difficulty understanding 
instructions.

8% of learners performed at Grade 2 level

Grade 3
77% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level.

23% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

89% of learners performed well below what is expected 
at grade 3 levels.

11% of learners performed at a grade 3.

Grade 4
81% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level.

19% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

81% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level.

19% of learners performed at a grade 4 level.

Grade 5
58% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level.

42% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

50% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level.

50% of learners performed at a grade 5 level.

Grade 6

67% of learners performed at a lower than average 
level.

32% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

1% performed above the grade appropriate level.

58% of learners performed at a lower than average 
Level.

42% of learners performed at a grade 6 level.

Grade 7

40% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level.

59% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

1% performed above grade appropriate level.

41% learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

59% learners performed at a grade 7 level.

ESSI – SPELLING  
ASSESSMENT  
GROUP RESULTS

GRADE PRE-ASSESSMENT (FEBRUARY 2021) POST-ASSESSMENT (NOVEMBER 2021)

Grade 1 100% of learners were not able to spell.
94% of learners were not able to spell.

6% of learners were able to spell at a Grade 1 level.

Grade 2 100% of learners performed lower than a grade 1 
appropriate level.

68% of learners performed lower than a grade 1 
appropriate level.

32% of learners performed on a Grade 2 level.

Grade 3

90% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level.

1% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

9% of learners were unable to complete the test.

64% of learners performed lower than what is expected 
for their grade.

36% of learners performed on a Grade 3 level.

Grade 4
87% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

13% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

87% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

13% of learners performed at a Grade 4 level.

Grade 5

54% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

42% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

4% of learners performed above the grade appropriate 
level.

23.5% of learners performed at a Foundation phase 
level.

58% of learners performed at Grade 5 level.

18.5% of learners performed above Grade 5 level.

Grade 6

48% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

31% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level (Grade 5 &6).

21% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

8% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

72% of learners performed at a Grade 5 level 

20% of learners performed at Grade 6 level

Grade 7

34% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

37% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level (grade 4 & 5).

29% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

61% of learners performed at Grade 7 level

39% of learners performed at a Grade 6 Level.
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ESSI – READING  
ASSESSMENT  
GROUP RESULTS

GRADE PRE-ASSESSMENT (FEBRUARY 2021) POST-ASSESSMENT (NOVEMBER 2021)

Grade 1 100% of learners were not able to read. With few 
learners being able to identify letters of the alphabet.

81% of learners had difficulty reading and recognising 
letters.

19% of learners were reading at Grade 1 level.

Grade 2 100% of learners performed lower than a grade 1 
appropriate level.

65% of learners performed lower than a grade 1 
appropriate level. They had difficulty recognising letters 
and words.

35% of learners performed at a Grade 2 level.

Grade 3

90% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level.

1% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

9% of learners were unable to complete the test.

65% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level.

35% of learners performed at a grade 3 level.

100% were able to complete the test.

Grade 4

94% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

5% of learners performed at a grade appropriate Level.

1% of learners performed at a higher than grade 
appropriate level.

94% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

5% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

1% of learners performed at a higher than grade 
appropriate level.

Grade 5

54% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

41% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

5% of learners performed above the grade appropriate 
level.

54% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

41% of learners performed at Grade 5 level.

5% of learners performed above the grade appropriate 
level.

Grade 6

36% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

34% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level (Grade 5 & 6).

30% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

47% of learners performed above the expected level.

47% of learners performed at Grade 6

6% of learners performed at a grade appropriate level.

Grade 7

17% of learners performed at a Foundation phase level.

41% of learners performed at a lower than grade 
appropriate level (grade 4 & 5).

42% of learners performed at a grade-appropriate 
level.

28% of learners performed lower than the expected 
level.

60% of learners performed at Grade 4 and 5 level

12% of learners performed at Grade 7 level.

Whilst improvement has not been significant, Tomorrow 
Trust has successfully ensured that the learners do not fall 
further behind. These results have allowed us to improve 
our academic offerings. 

These results have allowed us to pick up trends and pinpoint 
areas of weakness among our learners. With the assistance 
of our curriculum advisors, we have set in motion a 3-year 
academic plan to ensure we can use our time and impact 
the learners successfully post COVID.
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GAUTENG SENIOR 
HOLIDAY AND 
SATURDAY SCHOOL

Continuing the learner’s academic journey with Tomorrow 
Trust, Grade 7 learners graduate to the Senior Saturday 
and Holiday School Programme. This programme is a 
comprehensive intellectual, career, psycho-social and 
digital support programme focusing on building and 
strengthening English, Mathematics, Life Sciences 
and Physical Sciences. The goal is to enable these 
learners to pass their National Senior Certificate with 
improved results allowing them access to employment, 
entrepreneurship or furthering their education.  

GRADE 8 & 9

Focusing on academic ability, emerging with  
a strong sense of self, and demonstrating  
21st-century skills.

Results released by TIMSS (Trends in International 
Mathematics and Science Study) at Grade 9 level indicate 
that the national average score for South Africa is 372 points 

for Mathematics (38th out of 39 countries) and 358 points for 
Science (last position). Grade 9 learners were not equipped 
with the foundations of Mathematics and English to pass 
with a good mark even before COVID-19. It is notable that 
even before the pandemic, 47% of South African learners 
dropped out of school at the end of Grade 9. 

We compare Tomorrow Trust learners against their school-
going peers to see how the support has assisted their 
learning during this time.

of the group 
performed at  

averages of above  
50% in Term 1

of the learners 
achieved 50%  
and above in  

English

of the learners 
achieved 50%  
and above in  

English

of the learners 
achieved 50% and 
above in Natural 

Science

of the learners 
achieved 50% and 
above in Natural 

Science

of the learners  
achieve averages  
of 50% and above  

in Mathematics

of learners have 
chosen to take 

Mathematics instead  
of Maths Literacy

of the learners  
achieve averages  
of 50% and above  

in Mathematics

65% 82% 87%59% 65%45% 88%71%

Pass rate100%
PERFORMANCE (GROUP AVERAGE)

2021 Term 4  
Tomorrow Trust 
Learner Results

2021 Term 4
Township School  
Peers Results

61% 63%

49%
56%

Grade 8 Grade 9

ENGLISH

55%
60%

46% 49%

Grade 8 Grade 9

GROUP AVERAGE

48%

61%

44% 47%

Grade 8 Grade 9

MATHEMATICS

57% 57%

44% 45%

Grade 8 Grade 9

NATURAL SCIENCES

GRADE 8 GRADE 9
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GRADE 10 & 11

Focusing on academic ability, emerging with a 
strong sense of self that influences sound career 
decisions through access and opportunities.

The Senior Saturday and Holiday School Programme have 
shown the quality and commitment to the academic 
outcome of the learner’s results. Tomorrow Trust believes 
in accessing the potential in every child and ensuring they 
pass Grade 12 with improved marks despite the various 
challenges they face. This, in turn, develops a well-rounded, 
competent individual who can positively contribute to 
the South African economy by either accessing further 
education, employment or venture into entrepreneurship. 

of the learners 
achieved 50%  
and above in  

English

of the learners 
achieved 50%  
and above in  

English

of the learners 
achieved 50% and 
above in Physical 

Science

of the learners 
achieved 50% and 
above in Physical 

Science

of the learners 
achieved 50%  
and above in  
Life Science

of the learners 
achieved 50%  
and above in  
Life Science

of the learners  
achieve 50%  
and above in  
Mathematics

of the learners  
achieve averages  
of 50% and above  

in Mathematics

86% 96%41% 54%61% 70%37% 63%

PERFORMANCE (GROUP AVERAGE)

2021 Term 4  
Tomorrow Trust 
Learner Results

2021 Term 4
Township School  
Peers Results

63% 67%

46%
50%

Grade 10 Grade 11

ENGLISH

51% 56%

37%
41%

Grade 10 Grade 11

GROUP AVERAGE

47%
53%

33%
43%

Grade 10 Grade 11

MATHEMATICS

52%
44%

56%
47%

36%32%
37%33%

Grade 10Grade 10 Grade 11Grade 11

LIFE SCIENCEPHYSICAL SCIENCE

GRADE 10 GRADE 11

Pass rate for  
Grade 10

Pass rate for  
Grade 11

96%

94%
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GRADE 12

Focusing on learners passing the South African 
National Senior Certificate with improved results, 
accessing job opportunities, furthering their 
education or entering into entrepreneurship  
once they complete their Grade 12.

In 2021, we continued to navigate through COVID19, whilst 
our Grade 12’s faced many new challenges, like limited 
class time, lack of resources and getting used to a new way 
of learning. 

The Tomorrow Trust ensured that we provided our Grade 12 
class with comprehensive, holistic education programmes 
that included: academic development, supporting and 
building psychosocial, career awareness and digital 
integration and access to data and connectivity. 

Amid COVID19, our Grade 12 weathered the storm, and we 
are proud to announce that Tomorrow Trust 2021 Grade 12 
cohort has achieved a 91% Pass rate compared to a National 
Pass rate of 76.4%. We obtained 70% Bachelor Pass (75% 

When comparing Tomorrow Trust performance, 
specifically in one of the country’s most challenging 
subjects Mathematics and Physical Sciences, with the 
National Senior Certificate Outcomes, we have achieved 
the following:
• 85% of Tomorrow Trust learners achieved 30% more than 

57,6% of learners nationally achieving 30% and more in 
Mathematics.

• 88% of Tomorrow Trust learners achieved 30% more than 
69% of learners nationally, achieving 30% and more in 
Physical Sciences.

By the end of their final year at school in 2021, the 
performance of Grade 12 learners had improved to a group 
average of 54.2%, with English at 70% and Mathematics at 
50%.

Over the 10 years we have impacted 863 Grade 12 learners 
directly, of that 75% of them achieving a bachelor pass.

OVER THE LAST 10 YEARS:

863
LEARNERS ASSISTED TO 

COMPLETE THEIR NATIONAL 
SENIOR CERTIFICATE

75%
OF OUR 863 LEARNERS  

HAVE ACHIEVED A  
BACHELOR PASS RATE

139
OF OUR 664 LEARNERS  

HAVE ACHIEVED A  
DIPLOMA PASS

98%
OVERALL PASS RATE  

FOR THE PAST 10 YEARS

31
ACHIEVED A  

HIGHER CERTIFICATE

of the learners 
achieved 30%  
and above in  

English

of the learners 
achieved 30% and 
above in Physical 

Science

of the learners 
achieved 30%  
and above in  
Life Science

of the learners  
achieve averages  
of 30% and above  

in Mathematics

70% 51% 64%50%

GRADE 12

Group average  
for the Gauteng  

class of 2021

54.2%
of the Gauteng  

class of 2021  
passed matric

91%

In addition, I want to thank  

Tomorrow Trust for everything. I’m 

grateful for this ample opportunity. If it 

wasn’t for this programme I was gonna 

be like the other teenagers grooving every 

weekend without resting. I just feel so lucky. 

I see peeps my own age pregnant, some 

smoke, drink, or disrespect elders. Thank 

you for keeping me away every weekend for 

school. By the way, today is Saturday and 

I’m already missing going to school…

– Grade 12 learner 

being Female learners), whilst the National average for a 
Bachelor Pass was 34.9%, proving that the Tomorrow Trust’s 
additional support substantially assisted these learners.  
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WESTERN CAPE 
JUNIOR HOLIDAY AND 
SATURDAY SCHOOL

In 2021 we had 67 Grade R- 3 learners from various 
schools around Gugulethu, Nyanga, Phillippi, New 
Crossroads and Samora. As we had mentioned in the 
Gauteng Junior Holiday and Saturday School Programme 
performance analysis, the TIMSS has alarming results that 
were highlighted due to socio-economic conditions and 
outcomes. Tomorrow Trust introduced new psychometric 
assessments to assess learners’ proficiencies within the 
understanding of Mathematics concepts (VASSI), reading 
and spelling (ESSI).

VASSI – MATHEMATICS  
PROFICIENCY ASSESSMENT  
GROUP RESULTS

GRADE PRE-ASSESSMENT (FEBRUARY 2021) POST-ASSESSMENT (NOVEMBER 2021)

Grade 1 100% of learners did not attempt the questions and 
just wrote their names.

70% of learners performed at an average level for their 
grades.

 30% performed at a lower than average level. 

Grade 2
70% of learners performed at a below-average level. 

 30% performed at an average level. 

70% of learners performed at a below-average level. 

30% performed at an average level.

Grade 3
70% performed at a below-average level. 

30% performed at an average level.

60% at a grade-appropriate level. 

 40% performed at a below-average level.

ESSI – READING  
ASSESSMENT  
GROUP RESULTS

GRADE PRE-ASSESSMENT (FEBRUARY 2021) POST-ASSESSMENT (NOVEMBER 2021)

Grade 1 100% could not spell or read the basic Grade 1 words 100% of learners could read at an average to slightly 
below the average level for grade 1.

Grade 2 100% of learners struggled to read at a grade 1 level. 100% of learners were reading at a grade 1 level 

Grade 3
50% performed at a grade 2 levels.

50% performed at a grade 1 level. 

40% at a grade 2 level. 

60% at a grade 1 level. 

ESSI – SPELLING  
ASSESSMENT  
GROUP RESULTS

GRADE PRE-ASSESSMENT (FEBRUARY 2021) POST-ASSESSMENT (NOVEMBER 2021)

Grade 1 100% could not spell or read the basic Grade 1 words 100% of learners could read at an average to slightly 
below the average level for grade 1.

Grade 2 100% of learners struggled to spell at a grade 1 level. 100% of learners were spelling at a grade 1 level.

Grade 3
50% performed at a grade 2 levels.

50% performed at a grade 1 level. 

40% at a grade 2 level. 

60% at a grade 1 level. 

Pass rate 
for juniors100%

VASSI AND  
ESSI ASSESMENT

show that our Junior learners 
improved as more than 90% of 
them moved to an upper level 

compared to when they started 
as some of them they were 2 or 
more levels behind than where 

they were supposed to be at.

overall attendance  
for Junior HSP

85%

learner  
retention rate

98%
family involvement as we 

initiated family commitment 
days and emphasised on the 

importance of their role in the 
programme we have seen  

an improvement.

100%
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WESTERN CAPE 
SENIOR HOLIDAY AND 
SATURDAY SCHOOL

In 2021 we had a total of 60 Grade 8 and 9 learners from 
various schools around Gugulethu, Nyanga, Philippi, 
New Crossroads and Samora in year 2021. This cohort of 
learners has been with Tomorrow Trust since Grade R and 1. 

Our holistic model in the Western Cape included the 
expansion of our SHIFT programme for our Grade 9 
learners. This expansion included robotics and coding in 
the programme.

PERFORMANCE (GROUP AVERAGE)

2021
Tomorrow Trust 
Baseline Results

2021 Term 4
Tomorrow Trust  
Learner Results

48%
56%55%

66%

Grade 8 Grade 9

ENGLISH

46%
54%57%

62%

Grade 8 Grade 9

GROUP AVERAGE

44%
51%52%

61%

Grade 8 Grade 9

MATHEMATICS

of the group 
performed at  

averages of above  
50% in Term 4

Pass rate  
for seniors

of the learners 
achieved 50%  
and above in  

English

of the learners  
achieve 50%  
and above in 
Mathematics

72%100% 88% 56%

of the learners  
achieve 50%  
and above in 
Mathematics

80%

of learners have 
chosen to take 

Mathematics instead  
of Maths Literacy

81%

of the learners 
achieved 50%  
and above in  

English

88%

of the group 
performed at  

averages of above  
50% in Term 1

73%

overall attendance  
for Senior HSP

92%
Introducing an arts and 
culture component in 
the programme which 

was mainly focusing on 
identity and diversity.

PROGRAMME EXPANSION
We implemented SHIFT for grade 9 learners and more than 

70% of our learners did computer lessons in Grade R-2 but after 
that they had no access to computers. The SHIFT Programme 
for Western Cape covers Digital Literacy and Coding. Out of 

26 Learners only 3 had basic knowledge of computers but by 
the time we completed all sessions 100% of grade 9 learners 

were able to navigate computers on their own and had a better 
understand of the hardware component as well.

ARTS  
& CULTURE

GRADE 8 GRADE 9
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SNAPSHOT 
OF THE HOLIDAY AND SATURDAY SCHOOL PROGRAMME

54 405 Meals Served 

962 Food Parcels Provided 

237 Devices 

52 Psychosocial Development Workshops 

25 Virtual Classes 

54 In Person Classes 

97 Hygiene Packs 

6 IQ Business Workshops  

566 Educational Packs  

566 Scarves  

100 School Shoes Issued  

137 USB Issued  

DIGITAL INTEGRATION SESSIONS FOR 2021

Coding and Digital 
Literacy Learners

40
Learners  

participated in  
the Robotics 
competition

40
Total hours for 

junior and senior 
digital integration 

programme

167

Robotics Coding
40 40

ROBOTICS AND CODING  
SESSIONS DURING 2021

5 Classes in Cape Town

Gauteng

Cape Town

40

5

DIGITAL LITERACY CLASSES 
PRESENTED IN 2021

Reading Eggs Math Seeds
5 5

READING EGGS & MATHS SEED 
SESSIONS FOR 2021
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CHANGE A STORY
HOLIDAY & SATURDAY SCHOOL PROGRAMME

TSHEGOFATSO – 11 YEARS WITH TOMORROW 
TRUST  
 
In 2012, the Tomorrow Trust was introduced to 
Tshegofatso, who reside in Tembisa. Given the socio-
economic conditions his family were under, the trust 
moved in immediately to offer him a holistic service. 
We used our diagnostic assessment tool to be able 
to determine the kind of service he would get and 
we were able to identify what was missing at that 
stage in his life: one of them being education. With 
the support from the Tomorrow Trust, Tshegofatso 
completed his primary schooling with an average of 
80%.

In 2021, Tshegofatso continued into Grade 9 with 
the Tomorrow Trust. Tomorrow Trust programmes 
incorporate various 21st-century learning methods 
into the academic timetable.  In Grade 9, Tshegofatso 
has been exposed to coding, robotics and digital 
literacy. The technology has helped him reinforce 
his problem-solving skills, giving him a different 
perspective on his academics. He has also enjoyed 
Lalela, the Art programme integrated into the 
daily timetabling. He has expressed that Lalela has 
contributed to his creative skills and collaboration 
with his peers. Being part of the academic classes has 
helped him continue with his academic excellence 
achieving 70% in English and 80% in Mathematics at 
the end of 2021.

LEONA – 9 YEARS IN THE PROGRAMME SINCE GRADE 4

Leona is from Tembisa,and has been with the Tomorrow Trust since Grade 4. She comes from a family of seven and 
joined the holiday school programme in Grade 4 after being selected by her primary school teacher who realized 
her potential. Through Tomorrow Trust’s interchangeable intervention, we have helped her in areas of academic 
development, care and support. 

Leona’s performance improved from year to year since graduating to the senior programme. She mentioned a couple 
of things that shaped how she thinks as young lady.  Lalela had taught her how to express her creativity and learn life 
skills through art. Being exposed to SHIFT she had the opportunity to learn within Lego, robotics, creating her emails 
and being able to access what she once thought was only accessible to a privileged child. Leona was paired with a 
mentor who guided her and helps her think through her schooling journey making more informed choices. 

Leona is grateful to the Tomorrow Trust and views the organisation as a home away from home. She has now 
completed her Grade 12 and has been accepted at the University of Witwatersrand (Wits University) to study in the 
Faculty of Health Sciences (Medicine). She also has signed up to be a Tomorrow Trust coordinator committing her time 
to volunteering each Saturday and holiday period. 
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The Tomorrow Trust boast a long list of learners who, despite adverse socio-economic conditions, made use of 
the opportunity we presented to them and they excelled. Through our meticulous educational methods, we have 
endeavoured to make sure that each story we get involved in, must become one with our vision and mission. 
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KGOTSO – 12 YEARS IN THE PROGRAMME SINCE GRADE 1

Kgotso  is a  young  man with a renewed sense of a positive 
mindset. He’s from Soweto. He has been part of our programme 
since grade 1. During his time in the programme, he was 
introduced to a new set of educational material, ways of learning, 
different teachers and a sense of belonging.  Through our 
different approach, Khotso believes the exposure of materials 
helped his cognitive level improve, enhanced reading ability and 
improvement on his overall comprehension level, especially the 
creative aspect of his education. 

Outside of the learning environment, classroom, we have also 
included a programme where learners visit amusement parks 
and recreational facilities. He got an opportunity to be part of 
the group of learners who were chosen to go to the zoo with his 
peers. We also give them Christmas gifts and his was an emotional 
experience to witness because he’s not used to receiving presents. 
Our annual Christmas party is aimed at giving these learners an 
improved image in society as the items we package go toward 
improving their situation and boosting their confidence and 
restoring dignity. The programme made him feel special and 
appreciated irrespective of his home situation. Graduating into 
the senior programme that’s when he got exposed to more life 
changing experiences. Kgotso enjoyed the time he had in the 
Grade 8 and 9 programme. Kgotso was also exposed to chess and 
really thrived in the game and was awarded top chess player of 
the year. 

Kgotso was appreciative to be part of Tomorrow Trust during 
the height of the pandemic. He felt that without the support he 
would have not been able to improve his results and wouldn’t 
be afforded to have access to laptops and data. This is not just 
for learning but helped him shape up his technology skills, 
something he knew he needs for tertiary education. 

Kgotso is now accepted at the University of Johannesburg (UJ) 
to study BCom Accounting. He says we will forever be grateful to 
the organisation for playing a major role in changing his life to the 
way it is now. He is mature young man who reasons well when 
talking to other people he comes across. He would like to come 
back to the programme sometime and offer his time volunteering 
as coordinator or tutoring other learners passing on all the 
knowledge the programme gave him.
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No duty is more urgent than giving 

thanks. 1 would maintain that thanks 

are the highest form of thought; and that 

gratitude is happiness doubled by wonder. 

0 Enjoy the little things, for one day you 

may look back and realize they were the big 

things. ’Enough’ is a feast. 

With that being said I’d like to thank the 

Tomorrow Trust stuff members at large for 

the most significant and unremarkable 

support that we received from you ,yes it 

wasn’t easy mhhh it was a tough journey 

indeed but we chose to be lions for Mondays 

till Saturdays rather than being a flock of 

sheep for the rest of our lives and if I had a 

chance to say thank you in contact I believe 

that each and every individual who has a role 

at tomorrow trust has a unique gratitude 

coming from me, myself and I. Please keep 

on helping other children polish their futures 

I give a big shout out to tomorrow trust the 

real front liners 
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• World-class comprehensive, holistic support was 
provided to develop the student. This includes 
monthly workshops designed for the student’s year, 
tutoring opportunities, access to internal counselling 
psychologists, and telephonic support.

• Aligning BBBEE spend and providing supporting 
documentation.

• Tomorrow Trust has in-depth, comprehensive contracts 
and documentation that all students sign. We have a 
Board Review twice a year. Students are held accountable 
and responsible for their academics, behaviour 
and commitment to the bursary. This is similar to a 
Performance Evaluation done at work, which can be 
done with our partners.

• Tomorrow Trust provides work readiness assessments 
and LPCAT testing. The LPCAT test assesses the student’s 
learning potential, whilst the work readiness assessment 
measures the student’s capabilities and readiness for 
work.

• Tomorrow Trust Tertiary Programme is affiliated to 
NASCEE (National Association of Social Change Entities in 
Education), SAGEA (South African Graduates Employers 
Association) and the National Bursary Support Providers 
Forum.

17

Tomorrow Trust Tertiary programme offers partial and 
full bursaries to students completing various degrees at 
university, our goal is to create independent, problem-
solving, conscious young adults, who will enter the 
workplace as self-reliant individuals ready to lead a 
successful life. 

WHAT MAKES  
OUR TERTIARY 
PROGRAMME UNIQUE?
• Tomorrow Trust Tertiary Programme can offer 

comprehensive bursary management, which includes 
facilitating the application process, including document 
collection, screening, and interviews. This is done in line 
with the company’s requirements, and companies can 
be as involved as they choose to be. The sourcing and 
screening process is done at no additional costs with the 
Full Bursary Management offering. The list of students, 
academic transcripts and budget breakdown of each 
student is sent to the company beforehand.

• Tomorrow Trust has in house psychologists who provide 
the support needed for the students. We ensure that 1 
psychologist to 45 students. All our psychologists are 
HPCSA registered and are compliant with necessary 
standards and ethics.

• Tomorrow Trust sources our students through an online 
application called Leap.ly; this allows us to source 
nationally.

• Tomorrow Trust works closely with the University of 
Witwatersrand, University of Johannesburg, the University 
of Pretoria in Gauteng, University of Cape Town, the 
University of Stellenbosch in the Western Cape and in 
the Eastern Cape we work closely with Rhodes University. 
We are open to supporting learners located at other 
institutions and have successfully replicated them to 
various provinces. 

In alignment with our organisations’ values of Compassion, 
Growth and Social Justice, we aim to reinforce our 
teachings through communication, accountability and 
self-awareness. This is achieved through on-going support 
with our in-house Psychologists, monthly workshops, 
engagement sessions, career days, and various activities 
that the students experience throughout their time with 
Tomorrow Trust.

At Tomorrow Trust we aim to create a safe space and family 
environment, where our students can learn, fail, and grow 
without judgement, prejudice or fear. We believe that 
success is not linear, and walk our students’ path with them 
as they navigate the complexities of life as a university 
student and young adult.

Being part of our Tertiary Programme allows students to 
commit and invest in their own self-development and 
growth, helping them achieves their true full potential both 
academically and personally.

THESE PROGRAMMES SERVICE  
THE FOLLOWING PROVINCES:
1.  Gauteng: 102 students
2.  Western Cape:  37 students
3.  Eastern Cape: 17 students

 TERTIARY
PROGRAMME

pass rate for  
our students over  

the last 5 years

drop out rate  
of our students for  

the last 5 years

Throughput rate  
for the last  

5 years

100% 2,4% 88%



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2021 TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2021 5150

INCREASING OUR IMPACT

While we have grown the number of beneficiaries we 
support in these three provinces, we have also focused on 
implementing more focused interventions and programmes, 
while also establishing and growing partnerships at an 
institutional, corporate and organisational level. Over the next 
3 years, we envision that Tomorrow Trust Tertiary students.

SPIRIT OF UBUNTU

Ubuntu (Zulu pronunciation: [ùɓúntʼù]) is a Nguni Bantu 
term meaning “humanity”. It is sometimes translated as “I am 
because we are” (also “I am because you are”), or “humanity 
towards others.”

All Tomorrow Trust students are required to volunteer 
10 hours a year into the Holiday and Saturday school 
programme. This creates a culture of volunteering and 
giving back to the community as well as gratitude. The 
younger learners look up to the Tertiary students and aspire 
to be in their position, this encourages the learners to work 
hard and strive for a university degree. 

In 2021, despite COVID19 lockdown regulations and 
restrictions the Tertiary students volunteered a total of 1000 
hours into the Holiday and Saturday School Programme. We 
are truly raising conscious leaders of Tomorrow.

382021

192020

132019

72018

WESTERN CAPE NUMBER OF STUDENTS OVER 4 YEARS

182021

22020

EASTERN CAPE NUMBER OF STUDENTS OVER 2 YEARS

TOMORROW TRUST STUDENT DISTRIBUTION PER INSTITUTION

TOMORROW TRUST STUDENT CAREER FIELDS

57

Wits

25

UJ

15

UP

1

TUT

2

Maharishi

24

SU

13

UCT

17

Rhodes

36

Commerce

22

Engineering

12

Health  
Sciences

4

Humanities

3

IT

19

Law

51

Science

7

Medicine

face to face  
workshops

6
online workshops Average number 

of one-on-one 
counselling sessions

Hours given back

7 1525 1000

 SNAPSHOT 
OF THE TERTIARY PROGRAMME
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At Tomorrow Trust, we pride ourselves on implementing an integrated, individually tailored support programme for all our 
students. We understand that our focus cannot only be on education if we want our students to unlock their true potential 
fully and successfully transition through university. Instead, we provide our students with a safe space and a community 
they can belong to, allowing them to explore, thrive and grow.

Our three areas of intervention, as shown below, are therefore interlinked, because we believe that true potential cannot be 
unlocked if one of these areas are missing:

1) ACADEMIC ANALYSIS
The analysis of the 2020 tertiary students’ academics illustrates not only an improvement in performance, but also the overall 
benefits of holistic support to these students, which ensures success in all areas. The table below indicates how many students 
met the requirements of their year of study and passed either most or all of their modules therefore progressing into the next 
year of study, versus those who failed and are required to repeat the year. 

• Pass Rate is defined as the number of students who completed the academic year and progressed to their next year of study. 
In other words, they do not need to repeat the academic year. 

• Throughput rate is defined as the percentage of students who pass their qualification in the minimum time required.
• Dropout Rate refers to the beneficiaries who left the Tertiary Programme in 2021, and did not continue pursuing their studies. 

This was either due to academic exclusion from the institution, or by Tomorrow Trust. 
• Dropoff Rate refers to the beneficiaries who are no longer being supported by the Tomorrow Trust Tertiary Programme, but 

are still studying at their respective institutions. This was either due to donors ceasing funding, a change of institutions/course 
by the student or dismissal by the Tomorrow Trust due to poor academic performance.

 

2) CAREER ANALYSIS
One of our biggest goals at Tomorrow Trust is to prepare our students with the transition from being a student to a 
professional. Our work readiness and career guidance interventions play an integral part in ensuring our students not only 
secure employment upon graduation but are also equipped with the skills required to succeed in the workplace. While 2021 saw 
the largest number of students graduate from the Tomorrow Trust, the Covid-19 pandemic resulted in significant challenges in 
the job market for students. Below is a table outlining the percentage of students who found employment at various times 
following their graduation as well as the total number of candidates either employed or studying further from each graduate 
cohort 6 months after graduating.

*Statistics as at April 2021

Results from 2021 show an increase in the number of 
students studying further (Honours and Master’s degree). 
This is due to many students struggling to find employment 
after they graduate, which is affected by the state of the 
economy currently. As well as the fact that the job market 
has become competitive, with many more people entering 
with a University degree. 

3) HOLISTIC WORKSHOP PROGRAMME
A large part of the psycho-social component of our 
support model includes the design and implementation 
of a number of workshops throughout the year. Our goal 
at Tomorrow Trust is always to encourage our students 
to develop themselves holistically and our workshop 
programme each year is created with this in mind. 

As our support model is run in-house, over the course of the 
past year we were able not only to continue running all our 
workshops, but were also able to create and implement 
interventions and programmes immediately as the need 
arose for our students. For most of the year these workshops 
took place online, but as we moved into Level 1 of the 

lockdown, the students began requesting the workshops to be 
run face to face and so for the last few months of the year we 
have run all our workshops face to face. 

WORKSHOP TITLE FACILITATOR

Enneagram: The picture of nine Tertiary Team

CV writing & the world of consulting Bain & co 

Financial Literacy Old Mutual 

Personal and Professional Branding Tertiary Team 

Adulting 101 IQ business

Interview Skills Bain & co 

Emotional Intelligence and Leadership Tertiary Team

Communication and Conflict Management Tertiary Team

Boundaries in relationships Tertiary Team

Health and Wellbeing Tomorrow Trust  
Alumni

Preparing for life after graduation Tomorrow Trust  
Alumni

  TERTIARY PROGRAMME

 PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

YEAR NO. OF BENEFICIARIES 
SUPPORTED PASS RATE THROUGHPUT RATE DROPOUT RATE DROPOFF RATE

2016 140 91% 86% 5% 9%

2017 115 91.5% 94% 2.5% 3.5%

2018 99 92% 96% 3% 1%

2019 92 98% 71% 1.5% 1.5%

2020 101 97% 91% 0% 3%

2021 154 80% 0% 1%

YEAR NO. OF 
GRADUATES

BEFORE 
GRADUATING

WITHIN 6 
MONTHS

AFTER 6 
MONTHS

STUDYING 
FURTHER UNEMPLOYED TOTAL

2017 36 53% 8.3% 13.8% 8.3% 16.6% 83.4%

2018 24 71% 16.6% - 8.3% 4.1% 95.9%

2019 34 50% 10% - 26% 14% 86%

2020 47 38% 23.5% - 19.5% 19% 81%

2021 57 40%* - - 45% 36% 85%
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CHANGE A STORY
TERTIARY

TUMELO THLABANYANE – “My experience with the Tomorrow Trust has been 
amazing throughout my entire upbringing from being a grade 6 learner and attending the 
holiday and Saturday school programme, to being a Tertiary student and a Tomorrow Trust 
bursary recipient. Being part of the Tomorrow Trust has brought a significant contribution 
towards anchoring my holistic growth, being content with myself and instilling the value of 
gratitude within my life. It is fulfilling and rewarding to know that there are people who see 
potential in me, people who believe that I have the potential to bring about change to my 
community. I will forever be grateful for this opportunity” 

GONTSE MODIKOE – My experience with Tomorrow Trust has been life changing. I 
have been part of Tomorrow from 10th grade till matric and was part of the TERTIARY Team 
until I completed my qualification. TT become more than just a program, they showed 
so much interest in me as an individual, more than what I can produce academically. 
My mental state really had an impact on my academic life and the moment I started to 
prioritize my mental health just like they did, I started to perform very well in school. They 
supplied me with knowledge, from self, to engaging with others, to understanding others 
as individuals too, the workshops were very effective in teaching us about life and how to 
prepare for Adulthood and what comes with it. There is no NGO program that I’m aware of 
that gives students the opportunity to get therapy from Psychologists when their mental 
state is not good, carry out workshops to extend useful knowledge to the students and 
to be able to support the students financially who have disadvantaged backgrounds. 
They took off the financial strain on me so I can be able to focus on getting my degree 
and I managed to get my qualification because now I’m a Wits Graduate with a Bachelor 
of Science Degree  in Biological science and all Thanks to Tomorrow Trust for seeing my 
potential before I even saw myself, they groomed me from grade 10 till current and I can 
confidently say I am the woman I am proud to be, I reached so much of my potential, made 
so much progress in my mental state and now that I’m done, I’m in a space where I can 
stand by myself independently and I wouldn’t be this person if it wasn’t for the extra lengths 
that Tomorrow Trust has went for me.

KHENSANI MOAGESI – There is one thing that I learnt back in high school, and 
it is something I opted to keep in mind...No man is an island. That regardless of how 
one might identify themselves as either an introvert, a loner or any other category 
that we might allocate ourselves in, we are who we are today because of our past and 
present surroundings and we will either change or remain the same still influenced 
by our surrounding. Firstly, getting myself into a higher institution is such a privilege, 
I subconsciously knew that I would find myself here, but my chances of being in this 
environment were enhanced by the Tomorrow Trust through the Saturday and holiday 
classes they offered. Well, by just being part of the program was not enough, but being part 
of a program where you get taught by one of the best teachers is a different story. I found 
myself being taught by patient and enthusiastic teachers, adding more reason to how I 
excelled in matric. The service received from most Tomorrow Trust facilitators was excellent.

It is a well known fact that university is not as fun as depicted on the television screen. In 
this place, one needs a strong support system, and that is exactly what I received from the 
tertiary program. I was teamed up or rather allocated to a psychologist, Natasha Turton, 
who at times of grief I would talk to and get the help I need. Not only was I able to talk 
about my tough times, I was also able to share my progress and jubilant moments. Within 
the tertiary program, there are activities included where I would go different places to 
volunteer, which was fun and also allowed me to socialize with my peers or senior students. 
One other aspect that kept me moving was the reinforcements, from the advices and award 
ceremonies held, I was encouraged to keep on doing good and becoming a better version 
of myself.

Considering both the high school and tertiary programs, in them are a few traits I learnt  
and retained, gratitude, kindness, self-awareness and accountability. Lastly, I appreciate 
the flexibility displayed, especially when facing a crisis. When covid-19 struck, classes in the 
high school program were conducted online, even with the regular meetings held with 
psychologists were conducted remotely. Honestly, being part of the Tomorrow Trust family 
in an honor and a great experience which will be impossible to forget. Plus, with being a 
psychologist in the making, I am really learning a lot from my psychologist.

This is not all I could say about this NGO, but the above sums it all up :)
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Having completed their qualification, many graduates 
take internships with major companies; that often lead 
to full-time employment, while others secure full-time 
employment, and or decide to further their studies. 

Our graduates work in various companies such as PWC, 
KPMG, Standard Bank Group, Nedbank, IQ Business, Ernest & 
Young, Leratong Hospital, Komatsu, Murray & Roberts, and 
more. Some of our graduates are in media, fashion, research, 
pharmacology, logistics, while a few work outside South 

Amid these challenges, the Tomorrow Trust prides itself in 
the way it has responded to these ongoing challenges. The 
Tomorrow Trust Alumni Programme is composed of former 
students completing their tertiary qualification. The goal 
of the programme is to create a lifelong community of 
alumni through increased opportunities with meaningful 
engagements.

In the 16 years of the Tomorrow Trust’s existence, 364 
alumni members were recorded. This number included the 
47 graduates that completed their studies end of 2020. The 
cohort was welcomed into the Alumni Network beginning 
of 2021. 

Africa in countries such as Saudi Arabia, Italy, and the United 
Kingdom, and others furthering their studies in Italy and 
Sweden. 

We take pride in our alumni and want to relish their 
accomplishments. Through hard work, perseverance, and 
determination, graduates have positively changed and 
continue to change their lives and those of their families. 
Their success reflects our pursuit to change stories with 
holistic education.

According to the Quarterly Labour Force Survey of the  
1st quarter of 2021, young people are still struggling in the 
South African labour market. The official unemployment 
rate was 32,6%. This rate was 46,3% among young people 
aged 15-34 years, implying that almost one in every two 
young people in the labour force did not have a job in the 
first quarter of 2021.

About a quarter (24,4%) of the youth have jobs and 45,3% 
of them participate in the labour market. Within the 
youth, those aged 15–24 years are more vulnerable in 
the labour market with an unemployment rate of over 
63%, an absorption rate of about 7,6% and a labour force 
participation rate of 20,6%.

ALUMNI
PROGRAMME



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2021 TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2021 5958

As the data constantly changes, we track alumni 
demographics so we can make data-driven decisions about 
our programming. In 2021, we had on our records 364 
alumni that graduated and placed in employment since the 
start of Tomorrow Trust 15 years ago. 

Our workshops provide our alumni with an opportunity to 
remodel their career choices, learn new skills and come 
together to share knowledge and information. Business 
opportunities are also shared on this platform and we 
encourage them to find collaborative efforts to create 
better opportunities for others and help grow their brands. 
We also use this platform as our creative space where we 
converge every two months to discuss plans on how we can 
best approach and deal with poverty, unemployment and 
economic emancipation in most black communities. 

Since the start of our organisation in 2005, we had our very 
first graduate and alumni at the end of 2007 as stated on 
the below graph – and at the end of 2020 we recorded the 
highest number of graduates.

alumni are located in South 
Africa, across 9 Provinces.

international alumni continue to interact 
with Tomorrow Trust from Sweden, Italy 

(Naples), Saudi Arabia and the United 
Kingdom (London).

total alumni participate 
from all population 

demographics:

7
353 317

Black WhiteColoured Indian

95%
2% 2% 1%

GROWTH IN GRADUATES

Alumni in 2020

317
Alumni in 2021

364
14.84%

We pride ourselves in that we support and sponsor youths 
that pursue studies in various fields and over the years our 
graduates have obtained qualifications in different faculties.

To share a few of the overall qualifications, the Tomorrow 
Trust has 16 graduates who are now Medical Doctors,  
7 Educators with one teaching in our Holiday and Saturday 
School Programme. We have 14 graduates with LLB’s, and 
6 with Masters’ Degrees. One is currently completing their 
Ph.D.

THE ALUMNI AND GRADUATES’ UPDATE ON 
EMPLOYMENT STATUS

85% of the new graduates were either employed or 
furthering their studies, these stats were recorded in  
April 2021. 

These statistics on alumni employment include the 360 
known living graduates and alumni and exclude the 4 non-
living graduates (the deceased). 

80% of graduates and alumni were in some form of 
employment by end of 2021. Amongst the full-time 
employed alumni, 6 have successfully started or co-started 
businesses that are doing relatively well. 

69% 
38% 

employed

studying further

22ARTS

10BEAUTY

70
COMMERCE & ECONOMICS

23ENGINEERING

36HEALTH SCIENCES

33HUMANITIES

50IT & ICT

15LAW

57

MANAGEMENT SCIENCES

33SCIENCES

11TOURISM AND HOSPITALITY

4EMPLOYED

THE VARIOUS DIRECTIONS ALUMNI HAVE QUALIFIED IN:

2021 GRADUATES EMPLOYMENT STATUS



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2021 TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2021 6160

ALUMNI PARTICIPATION
Alumni are the lifelong stakeholders of the Tomorrow Trust 
and they give back in many ways, not only financially, but 
through their time, resources, connections, advocacy, word-
of-mouth referrals, and many other ways.

CONTRIBUTIONS FROM ALUMNI
Gifts/contributions to the Tomorrow Trust are making a 
positive impact in the lives of its beneficiaries and their 
communities. Gifts of all sizes make a difference.

Alumni donors contribute different funds at Tomorrow 
Trust, giving them the opportunity to support what matters 
to them.

PHILANTHROPIC SUPPORT 
A few volunteered in person at our Holiday and Saturday 
School Programme, both in Gauteng and the Western Cape.

R1 654 320 8 4
The total Alumni Network donors 

have financially contributed to 
the Tomorrow Trust since 2010.

Graduates were part 
of the mentorship 

programme in 2021

Presented and were 
speakers at the 

Career Conversations 
for the Tertiary 

students in 2021
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CHANGE A STORY
ALUMNI

VALENTINE WATI – comes from Ngodini, Nelspruit 
in the Mpumalanga Province. 

Valentine joined the Tomorrow Trust’s Tertiary 
Programme in 2018 in his second year of study. He 
then enrolled with the University of Johannesburg to 
pursue a degree in Engineering upon matriculating. 

Upon enrolling with the University of Johannesburg, 
Valentine completed his first year of study and 
obtained several distinctions and an African Insights 
award from the institution.

He continued to produce good academic 
results, reflecting his determination, hard work, 
and perseverance. Since joining the Tomorrow 
trust Tertiary programme, Valentine has shown 
commitment and dedication to his academic success 
as well as his personal development and holistic 
growth. 

Valentine also won the Tomorrow Trust 2019 “Student 
of the Year” and the 2021 Students of the year for 
encompassing and living out the values which reflect 
the organisation’s vision and mission. Valentine 
was part of a team of students in the Top 15 of 
the Ericsson Innovation Challenge; showing their 
knowledge, creativity, and vision to develop new 
technologies. 

At the end of 2021, Valentine graduated with BEng 
Tech Honours Mechanical Engineering from the 
University of Johannesburg. He dedicates his degrees 
to his aunt and late mother. One of his life’s mottos is 
“Whatever is happening now is short-lived, and it is 
better to suffer now than suffer for the rest of your life.

Valentine is currently working as an engineer in 
training at Zibo Containers.

KATLEHO LINDE – Comes from Tembisa, East of 
Johannesburg in the Gauteng Province. 

Katleho joined the Tomorrow Trust’s Holiday and 
Saturday School Programme in 2014 when he was in 
Grade 10 and matriculated in 2016. He got accepted 
into the Tomorrow Trust’s Tertiary Programme in 2017 
to further his studies and enrolled at the University of 
Johannesburg.

Katleho is a go-getter, not afraid to try new things, 
and determined to succeed.  He is always open to 
learning and improving his life even outside his 
career. For the last 5 years studying mechanical 
engineering, he developed his skills and abilities as a 
mechanical engineer within the university and gained 
experience through vacation work. 

He has also been nurturing his DJ-ing skills and 
abilities through creating mixtapes and uploading 
them on YouTube in his spare time. Now, he is ready 
for new challenges. Upon graduation, he wishes 
to continue to grow and develop his specialty and 
would like to transfer his engineering skills to the 
corporate world and gain experience by working in 
one of the prominent car manufacturing companies, 
such as BMW or Mercedes Benz. He would like to 
continue with his hobby as a DJ on the side and 
hopefully start earning from it. His long-term career 
goal is to become a productions manager and 
manage several big projects.

At the end of 2020, Katleho graduated with a Bachelor 
of Engineering Technology from the University of 
Johannesburg. His motto in life is “Early is on time,  
on time is late, late is unacceptable”. 
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MARANATHA MARARA – Comes from Polokwane, 
in the Limpopo Province. 

Maranatha joined the Tomorrow Trust’s Tertiary 
Programme in 2018, in her 2nd year of study, pursuing 
a degree in BCom Information Systems at the 
University of the Witwatersrand. 

Upon matriculating, in 2017, she moved to 
Johannesburg to further her studies and enrolled 
with the University of the Witwatersrand. She has 
always had a passion for Information Systems, and 
she found it challenging in a good way as it pushed 
her to focus and achieve her goals. She believes that 
she did not choose the degree, but the degree chose 
her.

After joining the Tomorrow Trust in 2018, this 
young lady has been developed into the holistic 

and conscious leader that she believes she is today 
and attributes a lot of her successes to date to the 
Tomorrow Trust.

Maranatha’s future career interests are being in the 
position of a Business Analyst or Consultant in the 
management consulting space. She would also love 
to explore her abilities and talents to one day open 
a successful businesses of her own. Her motto in 
life is “make yourself proud before anyone else and 
remember to be yourself because everyone else is 
already taken”. 

She obtained an Information Systems Honours 
Degree from the University of the Witwatersrand at 
the end of 2021. Maranatha is currently employed as 
an Associate Intern since January 2022 at IQ Business.

MALEHLOHONOLO LEBIYSA – comes from 
Daveyton, East of Johannesburg in the Gauteng 
Province. 

Malehlohonolo joined the Tomorrow Trust’s Holiday 
and Saturday School Programme in 2013 when 
she was in Grade 10 and matriculated in 2015. She 
got accepted into the Tomorrow Trust’s Tertiary 
Programme in 2016 to further her studies and 
enrolled at the University of Johannesburg.

Malehlohonolo is a determined young lady who has 
always had a passion for helping others and making a 
difference, one of more reasons she pursued a degree 
in health sciences. She has always wanted to work in 
the health sector and fulfill not only her dream but 
also her passion.

She graduated end of 2020 with a Bachelor of 
Diagnostic Radiography from the University of 
Johannesburg. After graduating, Malehlohonolo 
completed 12 months of community service at 
Dihlabeng Regional Hospital in Bethlehem (Free 
State). She is now working as a qualified Junior 
Diagnostic Radiographer at the Milpark Radiology Inc, 
the very same institution she was doing her practicals 
during her studies. 

Malehlohonolo’s motto in life is her favourite verse 
– Isaiah 60 v 22 – the reason she believes in this so 
much is because, from all the challenges she faced in 
her life, all worked out in God’s timing, and this motto 
also encourages her to be a patient person.
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F25 EVENT– WESTERN CAPE

The F25 is a group of Mimecast Executive members from 
around the world. On the 9th of June 2021, Tomorrow Trust 
hosted the F25. Amid COVID19, we hosted Mimecasters 
virtually and in person at Mseki Primary school. Mimecast’s 
wish was to spread the joy of reading and help learners 
have access to a library that is filled with books. Mimecast 
donated an entire functional library to Mseki Primary 
school and treats for all learners.  In celebration and as part 
of showing their gratitude, the school showcased cultural 
performances inviting Mimecasters into their school.

“The library has been my dream for a long time, but we 
were unable to make this possible on our own because of 
resources. Today, what seemed impossible became possible 
because of our relationship with Tomorrow Trust and 
Mimecast. This is not just a benefit for us as a school but the 
entire community will benefit from it” – Principal Philani 
(From Mseki Primary School)

PARTNER INVOLVEMENT 
IN PROGRAMMES

GIVING IS NOT JUST ABOUT THE DONATION; IT’S ABOUT MAKING A DIFFERENCE!

TOMORROW TRUST WOULD LIKE TO THANK EACH OF OUR PARTNERS WHO CONTRIBUTED 
TO THE TOMORROW TRUST AND OUR BENEFICIARIES DURING 2021.

MIMECAST

Over the last five years, Mimecast has partnered with Tomorrow 
Trust, sponsoring Foundation phase learners and actively getting 
involved in our programmes. Mimecast has shown a strong culture 
of shared ethical leadership where all stakeholders and employees 
are driven to act in the best interest of humanity’s greater good.

MIMECAST – GET BACK IN ACTION

On the 6th of October 2021, we hosted the Mimecast team 
at our Junior Holiday and Saturday School Programme. 
Mimecast sponsors 35  foundation phase going learners 
within the programme. Mimecast teamed up with the 
learners they support, to help them with their classroom 
activities. The day started with an ice breaker that allowed 
the learners to connect with the Mimecast team, followed by 
in-class activities that promoted mental skills and problem-
solving abilities. 

KES – ANNUAL EASTER DRIVE

King Edward VII School has been a partner of Tomorrow 
Trust since 2010.  The generous Edwardian family has been 
active with the traditional Easter egg collection. Thanks to 
the combined efforts of the High School and Prep School, 10 
577 easter eggs were collected. Thank you to the younger 
brothers at King Edward VII Preparatory School for assisting 
with the Egg Drive.

The Easter Eggs driver enabled the school to distribute a 
record Easter cheer to various charities, organisations and 
nursing homes. The Tomorrow Trust was one of the selected 
organisations. Easter Eggs were handed out to our Grade 8 
and 9 learners during the Easter period.

DATATEC VISIT HSP

Datatec Limited, also known as Datatec Group, is a Johannesburg, South Africa-
based multinational information and communications technology services group. 
Datatec sponsors 60 senior learners within the Tomorrow Trust. Datatec had joined 
our online sessions in July 2021, in the height of lockdown but in October when 
restrictions were eased Datatec and their Chairman Maya Makanjee visited the 
learners to hear their experience of COVID, sharing their stories and how they have 
been doing academically and mentally throughout the pandemic.

“Greetings, Mam. I want to take this opportunity to thank the TT family for bringing 
the DATATEC people today. Seeing that there’s someone who still has hope in us 
gave me that spirit of believing that I can achieve more in life and let the past be the 
past. Their visit today had a huge impact on my life. I wish they could keep on with 
the beautiful work they’re doing for us towards other children. I usually lose hope, 
but this time it’s the other way around; I feel motivated.”– Grade 12 student
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ZENSAR DONATION OF DEVICES

Zensar Technologies, a leading digital solutions and 
technology services company, announced that it reinforced 
its support for Tomorrow Trust by enabling local students 
to learn and develop their skills. Zensar’s team donated 
131 dual-purpose devices with data to Grade 10 and 11 
students. These students hail from Soweto, Alexandra, 
Tembisa, and Daveyton, where Tomorrow Trust supports 
orphaned and vulnerable children. This donation comes 
when the pandemic has resulted in many young students 
discontinuing their studies. This initiative aims to provide 
digital access to these students. They can pursue vital 
developing competencies and have the option to learn from 
anywhere, keeping them safe in the ongoing pandemic.

Ajay S. Bhutoria, Chief Executive Officer and Managing 
Director, Zensar, said, “Building the next generation of talent 
is important. I am very proud of our team’s efforts in South 
Africa. By providing a platform so these deserving students 
can develop their skills, we are creating a more stable and 
brighter future for us all.”

Harish Lala, Senior Vice-President and Head, Zensar South 
Africa, commented, “South Africa has young and capable 

MONOCLE UPLIFTMENT PROJECT

Monocle Solution partnered with Tomorrow Trust to invest 
funding into developing the infrastructure of Emfundsweni 
Primary School in Alexandra. Emfundsweni Primary school 
is one of Tomorrow Trust community schools whereby 
we source participating junior learners. This upliftment 
project has been split into phases to transform the school 
infrastructure into a learning ecosystem by the end of the 
year. Whilst Monocle Cares supported the development 
of the school’s infrastructure, they also provided the 
opportunity for 5 Grade 3 learners to participate in the 
Tomorrow Trust junior programme. 

The investment supported the transformation of the 
following:
• Painting of 26 classrooms
• Installation of 2 Jojo tanks
• Food garden 
• Distribution of 232 stationery packs and backpacks to 

Grade 3 learners within the school.
• Connection of electricity to 24 classes and 4 bathrooms
• Plumbing and installation of working toilets.

SUPPORTING CIVIL SOCIETY DURING THE UNREST 
AND RIOTS – TERACO DATA ENVIRONMENTS

In July 2021, South Africa was gripped by a frenzy of looting 
and arson, one of the worse scenes of violence since the 
advent of democracy. Teraco Data Environments generously 
donated R500, 000 to support the communities affected 
by this unrest. With the support of Tomorrow Trust, we 
implemented in-depth support for the betterment of our 
society during these harsh times. 

Overall Donation Impact Reached:
• 4951 general individuals reached and supported during 

the unrest.
• Reach 400 learners on ItsokTech for social-emotional 

support
• Supported community development by providing taxis 

and volunteers with the opportunity to earn a small wage 
during this project to help support their families.

• Food support and relief to 2794 households through our 
care organisations.

• Food support to 1100 Tomorrow Trust direct beneficiaries.
• 6 Debrief sessions hosted by in-house counselling 

psychologists to communities affected by the riots and 
unrest.

• Learning support was provided to 566 learners.

TERACO DATA ENVIRONMENTS SUPPORTING  
SHIFT ICT PROGRAMME

SHIFT (Digital) (‘Skills, Holism, and Innovation for Tomorrow’) 
aims at guiding and preparing learners to solve problems, 
think critically, work collaboratively and creatively, function 
in a digital and information-driven world, apply digital and 
ICT skills and transfer these skills to solve everyday problems 
and its possibilities. The SHIFT programme houses various 
robotics, coding, e-learning, digital literacy, academic 
enhancement apps, access to ICT connection, devices and 
data and digital entrepreneurship. In our coding classes, 
we needed a USB so that our learners could save their work 
weekly and build on coding applications. Teraco supported 
Tomorrow Trust with a donation of 45 USBs.

GAUTRAIN MANAGEMENT AGENCY SUPPORTING 
FAMILIES DURING COVID19

In late 2021, GMA established their employee corporate 
social investment programme. Their first activity was a 
food bucket drive whereby they helped families around 
Gauteng with much-needed groceries. Tomorrow Trust 
distributed 1200 buckets on behalf of GMA, impacting our 
surrounding areas of Alexandra, Soweto, Tembisa, Daveyton 
and Diepsloot.

talent. We are committed to working with Tomorrow Trust 
to develop this talent. One of the key objectives of our skills 
development initiative in the region is to train and prepare 
future ICT skillsets to contribute to their communities, 
industries, and economies. We wish all the best to these 
eager-to-learn students so that they can create a stable 
future for themselves and become successful technology 
professionals.”
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PEPSICO RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT TEAM 
SHARING THEIR PASSION 

Over the last 5 years, PepsiCo’s R&D department has hosted 
the Tomorrow Trust beneficiaries to give them insight and 
experience how the “classic chip” and PepsiCo products are 
produced. On the 7th of October, Tomorrow Trust hosted 27 
R&D team members virtually. The R&D team had presented 
their processes, careers and passions to over 150 Grade 10 
and 11 learners. 

PEPSICO NELSON MANDELA DAY– SHARING 
CAREERS INSPIRING OTHERS

Through an ongoing partnership and collaboration, PepsiCo 
and the Tomorrow Trust were able to run three virtual career 
days in commemoration of Nelson Mandela Day 2021. 47 
Volunteers from all across the PepsiCo business signed up 
to engage with Tomorrow Trust learners about their career 
journeys and careers at PepsiCo and to share any words of 
wisdom they have for young people still working towards 
their dreams. The event was held between the 14th and 
16th of July 2021, leading to Nelson Mandela Day. Each day 
was kicked off by a warm welcome from PepsiCo leadership, 
followed by presentations by staff members. Following 
the presentations, three staff members were taken into 
breakout sessions where they had an opportunity to engage 
more meaningfully with a group of learners and where the 
learners could ask them questions. 

These sessions ended with an opportunity for final 
comments and then commencing the next session. The 
event was held from 8h45 to 15h37 each day, with each 
session lasting 67 minutes. In this way, each staff member 
completed 67 minutes of volunteering for Nelson Mandela 
Day.

IQ FOUNDATION AND MY LIFE CAMP

IQ Business has been a long-standing partner of Tomorrow 
Trust. The IQ team had creatively adjusted their workshops 
to accommodate the restrictions of COVID. It continued 
to engage the Grade 10-12 learners, tertiary learners and 
Western Cape learners. Some workshops were Adulting 101, 
whereby they focused on teaching the students how to 
manage their finances through basic budgeting skills and 
investment processes before focusing on skills like stress 
management and anxiety in preparation for the upcoming 
examination period. 

We were excited to participate in IQ MY Life Camp, adjusting 
the weekend camp to a day camp. All 80 Grade 10 learners 
attended a fun filled day designed and planned by 
passionate IQ ers. All learners participated in creating their 
war cries and flags and worked as a team as they worked 
through activities that promoted leadership, collaboration 
and fun. 

PEPSICO ENGAGEMENT WITH TOMORROW TRUST

Tomorrow Trust has partnered with Pepsico since 2016. 
As part of their global pillars of improving educational 
opportunities for orphaned and vulnerable children in 
Gauteng and the Western Cape. The PepsiCo team indeed 
provided engagements that shared expertise, time, and 
passion with Tomorrow Trust beneficiaries, impacting over 
300 learners by sharing their personal skills and experience 
to help shape new thinking and problem solving among our 
beneficiaries.

PEPSICO DONATE HYGIENE PACKS

PepsiCo R&D team collected 172 hygiene packs for our 
Gauteng and Western Cape beneficiaries. COVID has 
redirected household funds to more pressing items. So 
often, our learners do not gain access to such luxuries. We 
want to thank the PepsiCo R&D team for going above and 
beyond.

THE WUNDERMAN THOMPSON DIGITAL 
COMPETITION

On the 8th of October 2021, Tomorrow Trust evaluated 
the Grade 8 and 9 SHIFT outcomes by hosting an internal 
competition. Whilst COVID 19 has limited in-person 
engagement, with the support of Wunderman Thompsons, 
we were able to run competitions for robotics, coding and 
digital literacy concurrently. 

• “I enjoyed the interaction between the guests and us, the 
learners. I also enjoyed hearing about the different career 
fields and how they got to where they are now.”

•  “Every session would always be educational, be able to 
take some advice back with you and be able to guide 
yourselves through the advice I got at the sessions. I liked 
the sessions because there were a variety of careers that 
made me see that there are many careers I can be in the 
mere future.”

• “I learnt more about different careers and how it feels like 
working in PepsiCo.”
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BUILDING COMPANY SUPPORTING EDUCATION BY 
DONATING N95 MASKS

During the plight of the pandemic, we were fortunate to 
receive a donation of over 1000 N95 masks to support our 
in-person programme. This donation also allowed us to 
spread safety to our schools and communities.

67 MINUTES OF MENTORSHIP FOR MANDELA

In commemoration of Nelson Mandela month, the 
Tomorrow Trust initiated 67 minutes of Mentorship - 
encouraging our donors, partners and alumni to volunteer 
their time to offer a 67-minute mentorship session with our 
high school learners and tertiary students. As mentorship 
has been successfully used to support youth and young 

adults, we value the support we can always rely on from 
those who continue to work with us to support our 
beneficiaries. Even during a time like this, where physical 
and social contact is limited, we can ensure that we run 
programmes that encompass our core values. 

We appreciate Murray and Roberts and their executive 
team, our alumni and other partners for participating in our 
Mentorship for Mandela.

GLENMARK PHARMACEUTICALS DONATION

In response to the COVID19 pandemic, Glenmark 
Pharmaceuticals donated various Dermakelp & VWash products 
to Tomorrow Trust. We received over 6000 products distributed 
to Soweto, Alexandra, Diepsloot, Dayveton and Tembisa 
communities

BDO GETTING INVOLVED

BDO Western Cape donated beautiful rain jackets and Water 
bottles to our 127 learners participating in our programme. 
With the amount of rainfall we experience in the Western 
Cape, these jackets came in handy. They provided 
the learners with a uniform look and feel. The bottles 
contributed assisted the learners to stay hydrated during the 
hot months of summer. 

NU-WORLD –SUPPORTING IN-PERSON 
PROGRAMMES

Nu-World is a new partner of Tomorrow Trust. In the front 
line of COVID19, Tomorrow Trust needed to support our 
programmes with resources to test the safety of our learners 
and venues. Nu-World provided Tomorrow Trust with 15 
thermometers which were allocated to each taxi to test 
our learners before they arrived at our hosting venues. This 
donation helped us ensure the safety of our learners, staff 
and communities. 

LEVIS STRAUSS GIFT, OUR LEARNERS WITH NEW 
SHOES

In September 2021, Levis gifted 80 Tomorrow Trust Grade 
8 and 9 learners with a pair of new school shoes. Many of 
our learner’s households were affected by COVID19, leaving 
many unemployed and unable to provide essential items 
to their children. We are grateful to have a partner who 
considers such a gift for our learners.

AGGREKO DONATES GENERATOR TO TOMORROW 
TRUST ORGANISATIONS

Tomorrow Trust creates an ecosystem of support for our 
partnering care organisations and community schools. As 
much as we assist their children when opportunities arise 
to help, we linked them with our partners. With rolling load 
shedding, we had a BBBEE partner Agrekko who donated 
generators to our care organisations and schools. With this 
donation, they could continue their educational classes and 
support our learners even during load shedding.
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DELL CAREER CONVERSATIONS

On Friday the 13th of August, Dell Technologies and 
Tomorrow Trust collaborated on a Women’s Month Career 
Conversations for women in IT. All of our tertiary students 
studying Information Technology, Informations Systems, 
Informatics, and Big Data Analytics were invited to engage 
with a panel of Dell employees, who shared their career 
journeys, offered advice, and discussed common workplace 
challenges. 

SAGE FOUNDATION – CONNECTING VOLUNTEERS

Sage Foundation is one of Tomorrow Trust’s longest-
standing partners. Sage Foundation provides its employees 
with an opportunity to actively use their working time 
to give back in a meaningful way. Throughout 2021, 
Sage Foundation continued their engagements, and we 
leveraged off utilising virtual opportunities to connect with 
Tomorrow Trust learners.

SAGE FOUNDATION MENTORS TOMORROW TRUST 
LEARNERS

Tomorrow Trust has a structured Mentorship Programme 
designed to provide one-on-one life guidance and insight 
to our learners. From the Sage Foundation, 10 employees 
volunteered as mentors on our online Mentorship 

Programme and engaged with the Tomorrow Trust Grade 10 
learners. Among the 10 volunteers, they have been assigned 
16 learners, both male and female. 

Some additional feedback from the mentors (7) is included 
below:
• 100% of the Sage volunteers felt grateful for the 

opportunity to give back in this way
• 72% felt that the programme is structured in an ideal way 

to accommodate their work and personal lives; while 28% 
felt neutral about this

• 72% of the mentors also felt that the mentorship 
programme coordinator adequately prepared them before 
they had to start their sessions; while 28% felt neutral 
about this

• 86% of the mentors felt that the mentorship manual and 
additional resources provided were practical, while 14% 
felt neutral about this

• 100% of the mentoring volunteers felt supported by the 
programme coordinator, feeling they could reach out for 
assistance when needed

DEVELOPING ENTREPRENEURSHIP WITH 
UNCOVERING GREATNESS

During the Holiday School in April, an Entrepreneurship 
workshop led by Marco Martins from Uncovering Greatness 
was run with a group of Grade 11 learners. Uncovering 
Greatness focuses on equipping the youth, business owners 
and companies with the skills they need to succeed in 
business. The Grade 11 session focused on the basics of 
entrepreneurship and how one can identify opportunities 
in their communities. Some of the Grade 11s have also 
attended free online sessions on Wednesdays, focusing on 
Business Tips for Teens, run by the same company.

VIRTUAL CAREER DAY HOSTED  
BY SAGE FOUNDATION

A virtual career day was held with employees from the Sage 
Foundation and 12 Grade 10, 11 and 12 learners to celebrate 
Youth Month. Six employees from Sage shared information 
on their career journeys – from school to the present – and 
answered questions learners had about how they made 
career decisions, the challenges they experienced in 
university and what they do on a day-to-day basis.

CAREER DAY WITH SAGE FOUNDATION FOR 
INTERNATIONAL WOMEN’S DAY

In commemoration of International Women’s Day, Sage 
invited a group of female learners to engage in a virtual 
career event where they could hear from working women 
at the company. Each Sage volunteer presented their career 
journey so far and their roles at the company and shared 
many words of wisdom with the learners.

TAKE A CHILD TO WORK DAY HOSTED BY SAGE 
FOUNDATION

Once again, the Tomorrow Trust was involved in the Cell C 
Take A Child To Work Day (TACTWD) initiative, partnering 
with the Sage Foundation’s exco and senior leadership. The 
session was run virtually where learners engaged with Sage 
employees one-on-one, discussing all things from the world 
of work to dreams and aspirations.
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LALELA  
– LIFE CHANGING ART 

Tomorrow Trust has partnered with Lalela since 2016. 
Research has shown that art education is closely linked 
to academic achievement as well as social and emotional 
development. Lalela is provided to Grade 8 learners 
within the Tomorrow Trust. This session is filled with 
exploring creativity whilst learning essential life skills. 

 TOMORROW TRUST

COLLABORATIONS IN 2021

TLT – TOMORROW LEADERS IN TRAINING

Tomorrow Trust sources collaboration opportunities to 
help us build a holistic programme for our learners. We 
are proud of our partnership with Tomorrow Leaders in 
Training. TLT is youth empowerment focused on activating 
and maximising the potential of young emerging leaders 
from diverse walks of life through leadership programmes 
TLT offers a curriculum aimed to assist the learners in 

developing self-awareness, improving their understanding 
and emotional intelligence, developing effective leadership 
and communication skills and having a good understanding 
of how they relate to others and to their environment.

“UNITY IS STRENGTH,WHERE THERE IS TEAM WORK AND COLLABORATION,  
WONDERFUL THINGS CAN BE ACHIEVED.”

NASCEE

Tomorrow Trust is a proud member of NASCEE – the National Association of Social Change Entities in Education. 
This association of non-profit education organisations are working towards maximising the contribution of 
NPO’S towards the National Development goals relating to education in South Africa. 

ITSOK TECH

To strengthen our psychosocial support programme and 
leverage off digital opportunities, we partnered with “ItsOk Tech” 
Founded by Cody Gordon. The app is designed to bring together 
access and understanding emotional intelligence, provide tools 
and create a space for learners to access emotional support. 
From data received from the app, we are able to tailor design 
workshops to address the true needs of our students. This app 
has reached over 400 Grade 8 to 12 learners in 2021

BIRTHDAY WISH PROJECT – MARK SHAM

Mark is an entrepreneur, writer and speaker. He is the founder 
and CEO of Suits & Sneakers and also founder of the Impello 
incubation hub. Mark is a vibrant young man who enjoys rooting 
for the underdog and is passionate in disrupting education for 
people of all ages. In 2021, Mark decided to do something very 
different for any conventional birthdays- he was head strong to 
spend the week celebrating his birthday by hosting different 
events like hikes, runs and joining him at a birthday celebration 
ending on the Sunday. The difference about these events was 
that it was a fundraising effort to raise funds for organisations 
he is passionate about. Tomorrow Trust was the one of the lucky 
beneficiaries of the Birthday Wish Project.  

MAN IN THE MIRROR – ARISE FAMILY CENTRE

“For many of our young men in South Africa, the 
environment in which they grow up is tough. Many 
young men experience bullying, peer pressure, stress, 
depression, anxiety, anger, self-harming, low self-worth 
and suicide attempts; and many are finding drugs as 
a way of coping with these issues. In South Africa 80% 
of male youth deaths are related to drug abuse” – Arise 
Family Centre. 

Man in the Mirror is a resilience building workshop 
programme for teen boys and young adults written, 
designed and developed by the Arise Family centre 
based in Cape Town. The Tomorrow Trust, Psychosocial 
support programme has adopted the Man in the Mirror 
programme and we are sharing the knowledge and 
skills with our Grade 8, Grade 9 boys and some of our 
Tertiary students. The programme is targeted at male 
students and aims to unpack masculinity through 
building resilience in young men. The topics focused on 
developing strength, self-awareness, problem-solving, 
decision-making, understanding goals and fostering 
empathy, and healthily discussing communication and 
conflict management. The small group sessions allowed 
the men to be vulnerable and discuss topics that they 
collectively struggle with but cannot talk about. 

60 of Tomorrow Trust, young men benefitted from this 
programme.
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2021 LIGHTS ON AFTERSCHOOL

In 2021, Tomorrow Trust participated in the 
#LightsOnAfterschool campaign in South Africa! 

The goal is to increase awareness of the sector and its 
impact on learner outcomes and broader education as a 
whole. The theme for 2021 was #HelpKidsRecover.  

It’s been a challenging time for learners during the 
pandemic, with most schools closed with fully remote 
learning or operating in a rotational basis since March 
2020. After School Programmes are primed to help learners 
through fun, hands-on experiences that will help get them 
re-connected and engaged as they head back to schools 
full time. We were proud to be part of such initiative.

SENSE*ABLE PLAY SA AND DEVELOPING  
YOUNG MINDS BRIDGING THE GAP OF EDUCATION 
TO JUNIOR LEARNERS

Sense•able play and Developing Young Minds specialises 
in child products which encourage home based, one on 
one, educational & physical stimulation. During National 
Lockdowns, it was difficult for Tomorrow Trust to provide the 
junior learners with in person or virtual classes. 

Developing Young Minds helped us design the Foundation 
phase (Grade R- Grade 3) educational packs and Sense*ble 
 play designed Intermediate phase(Grade 4-Grade7) 
educational packs that consistent of Maths, Mental Maths, 
Life skills and Natural Science experiments that are all 
aligned to the CAPS document. 

These educational packs were designed with fun in mind 
and making learning through play as simple as possible.  
Over 460 educational packs were created each month to 
benefit Tomorrow Trust junior learners.

FIERCE – ARISE FAMILY CENTRE

FIERCE is a self-esteem programme that aims to explore and 
implement positive strategies and coping skills designed to 
increase self-esteem in a safe and supportive environment. 
The goal is to improve the way female students think about 
themselves, their decision making and life choices. This 
was achieved efficiently; covering topics like self-esteem, 
positive identity and self-talk, body image and the power 
of words, peer pressure and saying no, leadership skills and 
integrity as a woman. Through these intimate, small group 
sessions, the girls found a safe space to talk about their self-
esteem, how they experienced it and how it affects them 
daily.

CARE FOR EDUCATION

The world is constantly evolving, and Tomorrow Trust 
understands the importance of reinforcing the 21st-century 
skills in our programme. We take pride in our newly 
established partnership with Lego Foundation because 
through this partnership, we have managed to introduce all 
566 of our learners to Lego blocks, and we have integrated 
Lego/Duplo into our classroom activities. The classroom 
activities focused on teamwork and communication, 
problem-solving, creative and critical thinking and fine 
motor skill development. It has been a beautiful experience 
for our learners and our teachers. They engaged in different 
activities that allowed them to play and learn in the 
classrooms.

PRESIDENT’S AWARD

The Presidents Awards is a  leadership programme 
associated with the Duke of Edinburgh and a country’s 
president (in SA, President Ramaphosa)and is offered to 
youth between 14-and 17 years.  The President’s Award 
programme provides the learner’s opportunities, including 
completing the adventurous journey, service, skill, sport, 
and, where applicable, a residential project instituted 
and conducted under the auspices of The President’s 
Award for Youth Empowerment Trust of South Africa. 
Tomorrow Trust believes in having learners exposed to 
different opportunities, and this is the one opportunity 
and experience we wanted to tell our learners. Our learners 
come from vulnerable backgrounds, and this programme 
offers them options that are accessible to kids from well-off 
backgrounds. 

Tomorrow Trust believes in its young people becoming 
leaders in their respective areas, e.g. at school and within 
their communities.  The Award programme has a structure 
to follow (Bronze Level, Silver Level & Gold Level) and 
learners who choose to participate work and earn their 
status at these levels. By participating in this programme, 
they learn critical thinking skills, experience working in 
communities, and stand a great chance to lead successful 
and fulfilling lives. 

 The programme exposes them to opportunities that 
they would not have had, with one being that of having 
an international affiliation as most countries participate 
in it. For our learners, being an Award holder increases 
the chances of being employed. To date, we have had 15 
learners participate in this programme.

STELLENBOSCH UNIVERSITY COLLABORATION – 
TUTORING SUPPORT

In September 2021, we collaborated with the University 
of Stellenbosch, Department of Mathematical Science, 
to provide our Western Cape Grade 8 and 9 learners with 
formalized tutoring. We created these sessions not to be 
“homework support sessions” but to be tutoring sessions 
where our learners understand how to solve certain 
mathematical sums independently using different methods 
without relying on the tutors or teachers. These tutoring 
sessions were 1 hour long. 
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 TOMORROW TRUST

LEADING THE WAY FORWARD

ONE OF TOMORROW TRUST’S KEY PILLARS IS TO ADVOCATE FOR HOLISTIC EDUCATION, FULLY 
PREPARING FOR THE 4TH INDUSTRIAL REVOLUTION. THIS PILLAR HAS PROVIDED US WITH THE 
OPPORTUNITY TO SHARE BEST PRACTISE AND OPEN OUR ORGANISATION TO DEEPER MORE 

MEANINGFUL COLLABORATION OPPORTUNITIES WITH OTHER STAKEHOLDERS.

THE SOUTH AFRICAN CSI LEGACY AWARDS –  
SEMI-FINALISTS

CSRNEWSA (Corporate Social Responsibility News South 
Africa) is South Africa leading Corporate Social Responsibility 
news, multimedia and publishing house. In 2021, CSRNEWS 
launched the 1st of its kind, the South African CSI Legacy 
Awards. The South African CSI Legacy Awards showcase 
the CSI space and all the hard work that practitioners, CSI 
Managers and NGOs are doing within the industry. After 
a rigorous process, Tomorrow Trust was awarded and 
recognised as a Semi-Finalist in the CSI Legacy Award for 
Best NGO. 

MILPARK EDUCATION – BUSINESS SCHOOL SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY CHALLENGE

One of Tomorrow Trust’s core values is growth. It is growing 
one and assisting people in our ecosystem who wish to 
advance themselves through the value of growth. Milpark 
Education has a Social Responsibility and Environmental 

IQ FUTURE SKILLS LEADERSHIP AND CAREER SUMMIT

At the Tomorrow Trust, we are constantly reminded of our 
corporate partnerships and collaborations’ importance 
and value. Future Skills and IQ Business recently invited 20 
Tomorrow Trust tertiary students to attend their Future Skills 
Leadership and Career Summit. Running online over the 8th and 
9th of July, the summit had two keynote speakers, namely Adam 
Cracker (CEO of IQbusiness) and Bongiwe Gangeni (Deputy 
CEO Retail and Business Bank at Absa) shared their leadership 
experiences and insights into their careers. Following the 
keynote addresses on both days, workshops were held on 
various topics, including Strategic Thinking, Negotiation, Self-
Awareness, Diversity and Digital Transformation. The overall aim 
of the summit was to equip delegates with the tools and skills 
that will prepare them for their leadership journeys and career 
development as they move into the working world.

BE A BETTER HUMAN ONLINE COURSES

Be a Better Human is an online platform that provides 
eLearning micro classes in various topics, with a portion of 
each course fee going to the linked charity. Tomorrow Trust 
created and featured some of its psychosocial development 
courses on the platform being, including Emotional 
Intelligence. The second course is on Personal Branding.

CELL C MEDIA ROUND TABLE

On the 16th of September, Cell C hosted a media round table 
with guest speakers and change makers within the industry 
to discuss the empowerment ecosystem by taking the boy- 
child on the journey. This conversation discussed the impact 
of patriarchy on both men and woman. Tomorrow Trust 
Head of Tertiary programme, Natasha Turton, counseling 
psychologist shared our views and approach on inclusive 
development for both girls and boys.

Management course. The core purpose of the SREM 
module is to ensure the Postgraduates students (PGDBA 
and MBA) explore the significance of social responsibility 
and environmental management from four perspectives, 
namely corporate, government, individuals and NGO. 

This is in keeping with Milpark Educations’s philanthropy 
of community outreach, community engagement, and 
social responsibility as drivers of social environment 
and economic sustainability. As part of the summative 
assessment, the students must present an integrated 
presentation and assignment, motivating the choice of 
charity with a recommended CSR strategy for the chosen 
company. “It was awe-inspiring for the panel and everyone 
involved to be presented with so many organisations that 
are making a real daily change in society; ultimately, one 
charity stood above the rest: Tomorrow Trust. Tomorrow 
Trust was gifted R280,000 for the continuation of our vision 
and mission. 
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 TOMORROW TRUST

MEET THE BOARD
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“AN EXCEPTIONAL BOARD OPERATES ON A HIGHER LEVEL… THEIR TIME MAY BE 

SPENT MORE WISELY, THEIR SKILLS AND SOCIAL NETWORKS BETTER LEVERAGED AND 

THEIR TREASURE MORE STRATEGICALLY DEPLOYED. EXCEPTIONAL BOARD MEASURES 

ORGANISATIONAL IMPACT AND EVALUATES THEIR PERFORMANCE, DISCUSSES AND 

DEBATES ISSUES, AND OPENS DOORS AND CONNECTIONS. THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN 

RESPONSIBLE AND EXCEPTIONAL LIES IN THOUGHTFULNESS AND INTENTIONALITY, 

ACTION AND ENGAGEMENT, KNOWLEDGE AND COMMUNICATION.”

 

– BOARD SOURCE: THE HANDBOOK OF NON-PROFIT GOVERNANCE (PG 21-22)

Jack Phalane - Chairman of Tomorrow Trust 
Roy Midlane - Treasurer
Lebogang Matai - Trustee  
Samuel Mensah - Trustee  
Lerato Matakata - Trustee

Tomorrow Trust has a phenomenal board of Trustees. They 
are committed to organisations’ governance and making a 
sustainable difference in South Africa. 

Whilst navigating COVID19, the adjustment to new 
leadership and continuing to serve Tomorrow Trust in their 
volunteering capacity, the Board of trustees has walked 

hand in hand with the General Committee Circle (GCC), 
overseeing weekly tactical meetings, ensuring the Trust’s 
financial utilisation was transparent and accounted for every 
month and provided the Acting General Manager with 
guidance and support during the interim. We would not 
have been able to accomplish this year without their counsel 
and advice. 

We want to thank our Board for tirelessly giving your time 
and resources to ensure the good governance, operations 
and well-being of our stakeholders, partners, staff members 
and beneficiaries. We salute you and appreciate your 
invaluable support throughout 2021.
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 TOMORROW TRUST

SUSTAINABILITY

1

A Guide to Realising your Dreams-A Workbook-

BRENT FEINBERG& KIM NORMAND FEINBERG

Tomorrow Trust has a clear exit strategy that empowers 
orphaned and vulnerable learners to become self-
sustainable and self-reliant through education. We 
are results-driven to ensure the betterment of our 
beneficiaries and we lean our strategies on our mission 
and vision. We are fully transparent in the work we do and 
the results that emerge, making use a niche organisation 
in the NPO sector. 

TOMORROW TRUST PARTNERS WITH RELATE 
BRACELETS

Relate Bracelets are a 100% not-for-profit social enterprise 
that handmake bracelets to be sold to make a difference 
in the NPO space and change peoples’ lives. Most of their 
revenue is donated to credible causes, including Tomorrow 
Trust. Tomorrow Trust uses the bracelets as a silent income 
generation for organisational costs.

 FREE THE MIND CO

We have partnered with Free the Mind Co who provides 
Tomorrow Trust with a dynamic reader, activity and 
workbook called Freeing Freddie – The Dream Weaver.

80% contributed by authors of their profit from book sales, 
to support unsponsored learners in the tomorrow trust.

B-BBEE OWNERSHIP DEALS

From South African Broad-based Black Economic 
Empowerment (B-BBEE) recognition, meeting Social 
Economic Development (SED) and Skills Development 
needs, to best practice Corporate Social Investment (CSI), 
Employment volunteering opportunities or strategic 
philanthropy. We are currently engaged in and have secured 
a B-BBEE deal that will provide us with funding (over the 
long-term) which will form part of our endowment.

ALUMNI 10%

10% of their salaries contributed by our tertiary graduates 
(alumni), once in stable employment for two years, as their 
way of giving back to the organisation and supporting other 
children and youth in a situation similar to theirs. This has 
raised R1 654 320.
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GOVERNMENTAL PARTNERS
Gauteng Department of Social 
Development
Gautrain Management Agency

CORPORATE & FOUNDATION 
PARTNERS
Africrest Properties
Aggreko
Amicorp South Africa (Pty) Ltd  
Aurobinda
Aurogen Pharmaceuticals
Bain & Company
Brait Foundation
Bowler Packaging
Calulo Foundation
Cell C 
Concor Construction 
CSS Credit Solution
Danaher Holding South Africa Trust 
Datatec 
Dell
DNI  
ETHOS
Euromonitor International
First Rand Foundation
Gage Car Rental
Gerald & Shirley Leissner Bursary 

Iqraa Trust
Kirsh Family Foundation
Komatsu 
Kusasa Trust
Lumnia Foundation
Merck 
Michael & Susan Dell Foundation
Milpark Education
Mimecast  
MSC Corporate Academy
Monocle Solution
Murray & Roberts 
Nedbank Education Private Wealth  
Oppenheimer Memorial Trust
PepsiCo South Africa 
Petersburg Foundation 
RB Hagart Trust 
Sage Foundation
Spirax
Standard Bank
Teraco Data Environments
The Rupert Education Foundation
Timken 
Valid South Africa
Wood PLC Mining
Wood South Africa 
Wunderman Thompson
Zensar Technologies

PARTNERING ORGANISATIONS
Care for Education
Digify Africa
Girl Code
It’s OK Tech
Jefa
Lalela
Tomorrow Leaders in Training
Umbambiswano

JUNIOR PARTNERING HOSTING 
SCHOOLS
Maryvale Primary School
Rosebank Primary School

SENIOR PARTNERING 
HOSTING SCHOOLS
Maryvale College
St Andrews School For Girls
Wendywood High School

INDIVIDUAL PARTNERS
Abdul Qadr Hassen 
Alison O Hare
Brian Goosen
Bruno Gruwez 
Dr Evangeline Mthethwa  
Eliza Hedegaard
Frankie Felder
Jason Miller
Jules Martin
Kholekile Ndamase  
Kyle Penwarden
Mark and Vanessa Bilbe
Martin Sacks
Reed Bundy
Samuel Cargile
Simon Thornberry
Susann Ribe 

IN-KIND DONATIONS
Answer Series
BBBEE online
BDO
BDO Cape Town
Be a Better Human
Belvedere on Barkley
Europcar
Fluor South Africa
Formulated IT Group
GIBS Business School
Harrington Johnson Wands Attorneys
IQ Business

JHI
Lego Foundation
Levis Strauss South Africa
Nicole Levy (Optometrist)
Nu-World Industries (Pty) Ltd
Pan McMillan
PicknPay
The Relate Trust
Transform Marketing
U-Can Virtually Technology
Van Schaik
Woolworths Rewards

DISCLAIMER: Some photographs used within this Annual Report were taken 
under consent Pre-COVID19. 

FOR THE DESIGN OF 
THIS ANNUAL REPORT, 

TOMORROW TRUST 
WOULD LIKE TO 

EXPRESS THEIR SINCERE 
APPRECIATION TO: 083 408 8527

Design and layout by:
GIVING IS NOT JUST ABOUT THE DONATION, 

 IT ’S ABOUT MAKING A DIFFERENCE! TOMORROW 
TRUST WOULD LIKE TO THANK EACH OF 

OUR DONORS WHO CONTRIBUTED TO THE 
TOMORROW TRUST LEARNERS DURING 2020. 

 TOMORROW TRUST

PARTNERS
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Registration number IT6728/05  •  NPO Number: 045-224-NPO

Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2021

General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile:  South Africa

Type of trust: The principal objectives of the trust are 
to generate, apply and convey income 
and/or capital for the education of 
those children who are orphaned, 
vulnerable and or youth affected, 
directly or indirectly by HIV/AIDS.

Trustees and key JH Phalane
management  L Matakata
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 ST Mensah
 LV Matai

Registered office  Isle of Houghton Parktown
 36 Boundary Road
 Old Trafford Four – 2nd floor
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 Saxonworld
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Auditors  BDO South Africa Incorporated
 Chartered Accountants (SA)
 Registered Auditors

Level of assurance These financial statements have 
been audited in compliance with 
the applicable requirements of the 
Companies Act of South Africa.
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The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Trustees’ Responsibilities and Approval

The trustees are required to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial 
statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements 
fairly present the state of affairs of the trust as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the 
period then ended, in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 1 to the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 1 to the financial statements 
and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and 
estimates.

The trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the trust and 
place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the trustees to meet these responsibilities, 
the trustees sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards 
include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework1 effective accounting procedures and adequate 
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the trust and all employees are 
required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the trust’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable 
circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the trust is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all 
known forms of risk across the trust. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the trust endeavours to minimise it by ensuring 
that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures 
and constraints. 

The trustees are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control 
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial statements. However, any 
system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The trustees have reviewed the trust’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2022 and, in the light of this review and the 
current financial position, they are satisfied that the trust has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the trust’s financial statements. The financial 
statements have been examined by the trust’s external auditors and their report is presented on pages pages 92 to 93.

The financial statements set out on pages 91 to 110, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the 
board of trustees on May 11, 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

____________________________________________  ____________________________________________
Trustee       Trustee

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Trustees’ Report

The trustees have pleasure in submitting their report on the financial statements of The Tomorrow Trust for the year ended 31 December 2021.
1.  Nature of business
 The principal objectives of the trust are to generate, apply and convey income and/or capital for the education of those children who 

are affected, directly or indirectly, with HIV/AIDS.
 The operating results and state of affairs of the trust are set out in the attached financial statements and do not, in our opinion, require 

any further comment.
 Net surplus of the trust was R5 518 322 (2020: R4 579 269).
 There have been no material changes to the nature of the trust’s business from the prior year.
2.  Beneficiaries
 Those children and/or youth who are orphaned, vulnerable and/or living in poverty.
3.  Trustees and key management
 The trustees in office at the date of this report are as follows:
 Trustees and key management
 JH Phalane
 L Matakata
 SR Midlane
 ST Mensah
 LV Matai
 There have been no changes to the trustees for the period under review.
4.  Interest in subsidiary company
 Details of the material interest in the subsidiary company are presented in the financial statements in note 3.
5.  Events after the reporting period
 The trustees are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.
6.  Going concern
 The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that 

funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations 
and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

 The trustees believe that the trust has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly 
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The trustees have satisfied themselves that the trust is 
in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The 
trustees are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the trust. The trustees are also not aware of any 
material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect  
the trust.

 The trustees have reviewed the Trust’s cash flow forecast for January 2022 to December 2022 and in light of this review and the current 
Covid-19 pandemic, they are satisfied that the trust has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence in the 
foreseeable future.

7.  Auditors
 BDO South Africa Incorporated continued in office as auditors for the trust for 2021.
8.  Other
 In kind donations to the value of R4 627 755 (2020: R1 808 600) were received during the year under review.
 The in kind donations received included rent, advertising, venue hire, toys, life camp, course fees etc. These are analysed by department 

as follows:
 Holiday and Saturday School R492 256
 Tertiary Post-Secondary School R168 780
 Organisational expenditure R3 965 811
 Cape Town R908
9.  Trustee remuneration
 Trustees were not remunerated for time or travel costs incurred.
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The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Trustees of The Tomorrow Trust

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Tomorrow Trust (the trust) set out on pages 94 to 110, which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements of The Tomorrow Trust, for the 31 December 2021 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance 
with the basis of accounting described in note 1 to the financial statements and the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA 
Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to 
performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards). We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with the Trust’s own accounting policies to satisfy the financial information needs of the trustees and beneficiaries. As a result, 
the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the document titled 
“The Tomorrow Trust Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021”, which includes the Trustees’ Report as required 
by the Trust Deed. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Trustees for the Financial Statements
The trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting 
and the requirements of the Trust Deed, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to 
liquidate the trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

BOO South Africa Incorporated
Registration number: 1995/002310/21
Practice number: 905526
VAT number: 4910148685
Chief Executive Officer: ME Stewart
A full list of all company directors is available on www.bdo.co.za
The company’s principal place of business is at The Wanderers Office Park, 52 Corlett Drive, Illovo, Johannesburg where a list of directors’ names is available 
for inspection. BDO South Africa Incorporated, a South African personal liability company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Trustees of The Tomorrow Trust

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the trust’s internal control.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by the trustees.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the trust’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the trust 
to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with the trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

__________________________________
BDO South Africa Incorporated
Registered Auditors

M Van Wyk
Director
Registered Auditor

11 May 2022

106 Park Drive
Port Elizabeth Central
Port Elizabeth, 6001
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The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

   2021  2020 
  Note(s) R R

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment  2  1 173 315  1 319 878

Investment in subsidiary  3  120  120

Unlisted investment  4  750 000  750 000

   1 923 435  2 069 998

Current Assets

Loan to related party  5  13 847  9 883

Trade and other receivables  7  384 856  466 875

Cash and cash equivalents  8  17 770 829  16 890 733

   18 169 532  17 367 491

Total Assets   20 092 967  19 437 489

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Trust capital  9  500  500

Accumulated surplus   17 192 542  11 674 220

   17 193 042  11 674 720

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables  10  132 051  165 914

Deferred income  11  2 767 874  7 596 855

   2 899 925  7 762 769

Total Equity and Liabilities   20 092 967  19 437 489

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Statement of Comprehensive Income

   2021  2020
  Note(s) R R

Revenue  12  33 892 560  24 495 124

Other income  13  112 798  316 422

Operating expenses  14  (29 952 126)  (21 166 531)

Operating surplus   4 053 232  3 645 015

Investment revenue  16  1 465 090  1 011 489

Surplus before taxation   5 518 322  4 656 504

Taxation  17  -  (77 235)

Total comprehensive income for the year   5 518 322  4 579 269



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2021 TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2021 9796

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Statement of Changes in Equity

    Trust capital  Accumulated Total equity
   surplus

Figures in Rand Note(s)  R  R  R

Balance at 01 January 2020   500  7 094 951  7 095 451

Total comprehensive income for the year   - 4 579 269  4 579 269

Balance at 01 January 2021   500  11 674 220  11 674 720

Total comprehensive income for the year   -  5 518 322  5 518 322

Balance at 31 December 2021   500  17 192 542  17 193 042

Note  9

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Statement of Cash Flows

   2021  2020
  Note(s) R R

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash (used in) generated from operations  18  (205 740)  10 156 820

Interest income   840 348  625 314

Dividends received   624 742  386 175

Tax paid  19  -  (77 235)

Net cash generated from operating activities   1 259 350  11 091 074

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  2  (375 290)  (1 177 909)

Loans advanced to related party   (3 964)  (10 003)

Net cash utilised in investing activities   (379 254)  (1 187 912)

Cash flows from financing activities

Total cash movement for the year   880 096  9 903 162

Cash at the beginning of the year   16 890 733  6 987 571

Total cash at end of the year  8  17 770 829  16 890 733
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1.  Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

 The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the accounting policies as set out 
below. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. They are presented in South African Rands.

 These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1  Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

 The financial statements do not include assets or liabilities whose carrying amounts were determined based on estimations for 
which there is a significant risk of material adjustments in the following financial year as a result of the key estimation assumptions.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the trust holds for its own use or for rental to others and which are 
expected to be used for more than one period.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the trust, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

 Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

 Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

 Property, plant and equipment is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses.

 Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged to 
write off the asset’s carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best reflects 
the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the trust.

 The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

 Item    Depreciation method  Average useful life
 Office equipment   Straight line   6 years

 IT equipment    Straight line   3 years

 Student equipment   Straight line   3 years

 The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another 
asset.

 Depreciation is not charged to an asset if its estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount.

 Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have significantly different patterns of consumption 
of economic benefits, the cost of the asset is allocated to the components and they are depreciated separately over each 
component’s useful life.

 When indicators are present that the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment have changed 
since the most recent annual reporting date, they are reassessed. Any changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in 
accounting estimate.

 Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. When 
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated recoverable amount, 
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit to bring the carrying amount in line with the recoverable 
amount.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Accounting Policies

1.2  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, is included in 
surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised.

1.3 Consolidation

 No consolidated financial statements are prepared.

1.4  Investment in subsidiary

 Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

1.5  Financial instruments

 Initial measurement

 Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial measurement 
of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit) unless the arrangement constitutes, in 
effect, a financing transaction in which case it is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate 
of interest for a similar debt instrument.

 Financial instruments at amortised cost

 These include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Debt instruments which are classified as current assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted 
amount of the cash expected to be received or paid, unless the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction.

 At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the 
carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable 
amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

 Financial instruments at cost

 Commitments to receive a loan are measured at cost less impairment.

 Equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably without undue cost 
or effort are measured at cost less impairment.

Financial instruments at fair value

 All other financial instruments, including equity instruments that are publicly traded or whose fair value can otherwise be 
measured reliably, without undue cost or effort, are measured at fair value through surplus and deficit.

 If a reliable measure of fair value is no longer available without undue cost or effort, then the fair value at the last date that such a 
reliable measure was available is treated as the cost of the instrument. The instrument is then measured at cost less impairment 
until management are able to measure fair value without undue cost or effort.

1.6  Leases

 A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. All 
other leases are operating leases.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Accounting Policies
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1.6 Leases (continued)

 Operating leases – lessee

 Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless:

• another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit from the leased asset, even if the payments are not 
on that basis, or

• the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation (based on published indexes or statistics) to 
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

 Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.7  Inventories

 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and estimated selling price, on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.

 The cost of books comprises the cost of purchasing the books. At each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment. 
If inventory is impaired, the carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell. The impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

1.8  Impairment of assets

 The trust assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment may be impaired.

 If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and compared 
with its carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable 
amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

 If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the 
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of impairment is recognised immediately in surplus 
or deficit.

1.9  Trust capital

 Trust capital is classified as equity. 

1.10  Deferred income

 Deferred income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and comprises of donations received in 
advance.

 Deferred income is recognised when cash is received that is specifically mandated to be spent on projects in the future.

1.11  Employee benefits

 Short-term employee benefits

 The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as leave pay 
and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is 
rendered and are not discounted.

1.12  Revenue

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that the trust has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods to 
the buyer, or has rendered services under an agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is 
probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the trust. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, excluding sales taxes and discounts.

 Dividends are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the trust’s right to receive payment has been established.

 The trust recognises revenue when: the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; it is probable that future economic benefits 
will flow to the entity; and specific criteria have been met for each of the organisation’s activities, as described below:

 Donations for specific purposes are credited to the relevant fund or project.

1.13  Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.  Property, plant and equipment
 
  2021  2020

  Cost  Accumulated Carrying Cost Accumulated Carrying
   depreciation value   depreciation value

Office equipment  126 434  (126 434)  -  126 434  (126 434)  -

IT equipment  1 224 535  (541 379)  683 156  949 224  (228 119)  721 105

Student equipment  698 752  (208 593)  490 159  598 773  -  598 773

Total   2 049 721  (876 406)  1 173 315  1 674 431  (354 553)  1 319 878

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2021
 
    Opening Additions Depreciation Closing  
    balance   balance

IT equipment    721 105  275 311  (313 260)  683 156

Student equipment    598 773  99 979  (208 593)  490 159

    1 319 878  375 290  (521 853)  1 173 315

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020

   Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Closing  
   balance    balance

Office equipment   11 606  -  -  (11 606)  -

IT equipment   283 638  579 136  (8 918)  (132 751)  721 105

Student equipment   -  598 773  -  -  598 773

   295 244  1 177 909  (8 918)  (144 357) 1 319 878

3.  Investment in subsidiary
    % holding % holding Carrying Carrying
Name of subsidiary   2021 2021 amount 2021 amount 2020

Malviprox Proprietary Limited    100,00 %  100,00 %  120  120

The entity is incorporated in South Africa and has a February year-end.
The carrying amount of the subsidiary is shown gross of impairment losses.
Tomorrow Trust holds 100% of the shares of Malviprox Proprietary Limited, which acts as a dormant investment holding entity that 
acquired a 10% shareholding in a Special Purpose Entity (SPE) Clusten 16 Proprietary Limited which in turn owns 25% in Zensar South 
Africa Proprietary Limited.
In March 2021 Malviprox agreed with the shareholders of Clusten to allow Zensar to exercise a buyback as part of ownership restructuring. 
The transaction was completed in May 2021.
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4.  Unlisted investment

Name of subsidiary    % holding % holding Carrying Carrying
    2021 2020 amount 2021 amount 2020
Spirax Proprietary Limited    51.49 %  51.49 %  750 000  750 000

The carrying amount of the unlisted investment is shown gross of impairment losses.
The company carries on the business of the supply of steam traps, strainers, air vents, liquid drainers and associated spares as well as the 
maintenance of such products. The company operates in South Africa.
The board of Spirax SARCO Services SA Proprietary Limited shall comprise of not less than 3 directors. Spirax SARCO SA (or its successors-
in-title) shall be entitled by written notice to the company to nominate 2 persons for appointment as directors on the board.
The Tomorrow Trust shall be entitled by written notice to the company to nominate 1 person for appointment as a director on the board.

5.  Loan from related party

Subsidiary

Malviprox Proprietary Limited    13 847  9 883

The loan is unsecured, bears no interest and has no fixed repayment terms.

Unlisted investment
The Trust entered into a loan agreement with Spirax Sarco Services South Africa Proprietary Limited in terms of which the company shall 
advance a loan to the Trust for the purpose of subscribing for 52 ordinary shares in the company, which loan shall be repayable on the 
date on which the first dividends are declared by the company or the date by when the Trust has received sufficient dividends to settle 
the loan. (Refer notes 4 and 16).

Related party loan reconciliation

Balance at beginning of year    9 883  (120)

Movement during the year    3 964  10 003

Balance at end of year    13 847  9 883

6.  Inventories

Inventories    598 190  604 572

    598 190  604 572

Inventories (write-downs)    (598 190)  (604 572)

    -  -

Inventory comprises primarily educational readers, workbooks and activity books developed as teaching and marketing materials and 
revenue generation for Tomorrow Trust. Management and Trustees note the slow movement of inventory and have taken a decision to 
provide for the future write off of the full value of the inventory.
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7.  Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables    233 421  369 001

Deposits    151 261  55 010

Prepayments    -  16 364

Staff loans    174  9 000

Student loans    -  17 500

    384 856  466 875

8.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Bank balances    1 200 361  4 099 838

Cash on hand    1 268  406

Short-term deposits    16 569 200  12 790 489

    17 770 829  16 890 733

9.  Trust capital
 
Capital account / Trust capital

Balance at beginning of year    500  500

10.  Trade and other payables

Trade payables    92 590  1 299

Provision for leave pay    39 461  164 615

    132 051  165 914

11.  Deferred Income

Deferred Income    2 767 874  7 596 855

Deferred income is funding which is ring-fenced or which relates to a future period.
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12.  Revenue

Donations    33 892 560  24 495 124

13.  Other income

Administration and management fees received    80 660  155 367

Book sales    32 138  153 056

Insurance claim proceeds    -  7 999

    112 798  316 422 

14.  Operating expenses

Operating expenses include the following expenses:

Operating lease charges

Premises

• Contractual amounts    498 276  492 551

Equipment

• Contractual amounts    195 418  221 942

    693 694  714 493

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment    -  (8 918)

Loss on exchange differences    178  242

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment    521 853  144 357

Employee costs - Administration staff    1 636 621  2 080 002

Employee costs - Teachers    3 597 088  3 094 326

15.  Organisational costs and program costs

Holiday and Saturday School Program - Johannesburg    8 410 400  5 067 950

Holiday and Saturday School Program - Cape Town    1 388 662  815 296

Tertiary Program    15 555 387  10 414 605

Special Projects    893 605  409 698

Administration Costs    3 704 072  4 458 982

    29 952 126  21 166 531
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16.  Investment revenue

Dividend revenue

Unlisted investment    624 742  386 175

Interest revenue

Bank     840 348  625 314

    1 465 090  1 011 489

17.  Taxation

Major components of the tax expense

Current taxation

Dividend withholding tax    -  77 235

Non provision of tax

The Tomorrow Trust is an approved Public Benefit Organisation. The income generated by the Trust is exempt for taxation purposes in 

terms of Section 10(1)(cN).

18.  Cash (used in) generated from operations

Surplus before taxation    5 518 322  4 656 504

Adjustments for:

Depreciation    521 853  144 357

Deficit on sale of assets    -  8 918

Dividends received    (624 742)  (386 175)

Interest received    (840 348)  (625 314)

Non-cash provision for stock write down    -  604 572

Changes in working capital:

Inventories    -  115 588

Trade and other receivables    82 019  (83 118)

Trade and other payables    (33 863)  164 155

Deferred income    (4 828 981)  5 557 333

    (205 740)  10 156 820
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19.  Tax paid

Current tax for the year recognised in loss    -  (77 235) 

20.  Commitments

Operating leases – as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year    249 155  230 700

- in second to fifth year inclusive    151 904  401 060

    401 059  631 760

Operating lease payments represent rental paid for business premises.

21. Related parties

Relationships

Trustees  JH Phalane

  L Matakata

  SR Midlane

  ST Mensah

  LV Matai

Members of key management  T Rae (Acting Chief Executive Officer)

Wholly-owned subsidiary  Malviprox Proprietary Limited

Appointed as directors  JH Phalane

  T Rae

Subsidiary  Spirax Sarco Services South Africa Proprietary Limited

Appointed as director  JH Phalane

Other   K Feinberg (Previous trustee, founder and Chief Executive Officer)

  B Feinberg (Son of K Feinberg)
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21. Related parties (continued)

Related party balances and transactions with key management personnel of the trust

Related party balances

Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties

Malviprox Proprietary Limited    13 847  9 883

Related party transactions

Administration fees received from related parties

Zenzar SA Proprietary Limited    (10 500)  (42 000)

The Kusasa Trust    (70 160)  (113 367)

 
The trustees wish to note that the Trust has an existing agreement with The Kusasa Trust in respect of management fees to be received. 
Per the Trust Deed of the Kusasa Trust, the maximum amount that may be paid equates to 15% of the total funding advanced for 
bursaries.

Royalties paid

B Feinberg    7 029  43 996

K Feinberg    6 899  54 300

Royalties are paid on the sale of books in terms of an agreement entered into between the ex-CEO and her son (related parties) and the 
Trust. In terms of the agreement the trust will manage the printing and sale of the books that were written by the related parties and 
then a percentage of gross proceeds were to be paid over to the related parties.

Dividends received

Spirax Sarco Services South Africa Proprietary Limited    (624 742)  (386 175)

Donations received

Zenzar SA Proprietary Limited    (700 000)  (657 864)
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22. Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that 
funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations 
and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The trustees believe that the trust has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly 
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The trustees have satisfied themselves that the trust is in a sound 
financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The trustees are not 
aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the trust. The trustees are also not aware of any material non-compliance 
with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the trust.

The trustees have reviewed the Trust’s cash flow forecast for January 2022 to December 2022 and in light of this review and the current 
Covid-19 pandemic, they are satisfied that the trust has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence in the 
foreseeable future.

22. Events after the reporting period

The trustees are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report, not otherwise 
dealt with in this report or the financial statements, which significantly affect the financial position of the trust or the results of its operations 
at the date of this report.
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   2021  2020
Figures in Rand Note(s) R R

Revenue
Donations     12  33 892 560  24 495 124

Cost of sales      -  -

Other income
Administration and management fees received     80 660  155 367

Book sales      32 138  153 056

Insurance claim proceeds      -  7 999

      112 798  316 422

Expenses (Refer to page 111)      (29 952 126)  (21 166 531)

Operating surplus      4 053 232  3 645 015
Investment income     16  1 465 090  1 011 489

Surplus before taxation      5 518 322  4 656 504
Taxation     17  -  (77 235)

Total comprehensive income for the year     5 518 322  4 579 269

 
The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited

   2021  2020
  Note(s) R R

Operating expenses
Accounting and secretarial fees      (204 016)  (66 025)

Advertising      (87 413)  (31 308)

Alumni - NSFAS      -  (8 608)

Auditors remuneration      -  (138 000)

Bad debts      -  (10 761)

Bank charges      (14 894)  (15 638)

Cleaning      (10 112)  (46 692)

Computer expenses      (40 193)  (29 343)

Consulting and professional fees      (205 894)  (49 209)

Cost of books      -  (710 150)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments     (521 853)  (144 357)

Employee costs - Administration staff     (1 636 621)  (2 080 002)

Gifts       (3 922)  (2 115)

Insurance      (70 155)  (84 150)

Lease rentals on operating lease      (693 694)  (714 493)

Legal expenses      -  (1 035)

Loss on exchange differences      (178)  (242)

Loss on sale of assets      -  (8 918)

Postage and courier      (5 368)  (1 702)

Printing and stationery      (34 164)  (26 689)

Program staff      (3 597 088)  (3 094 326)

Repairs and maintenance      (14 428)  -

Royalties      (13 928)  (98 296)

Security      (5 882)  (6 848)

Staff welfare      (10 823)  (27 547)

Student and learner accommodation     (4 968 793)  (3 039 928)

Student and learner education      (5 346 610)  (3 709 776)

Student and learner food and transport     (6 179 330)  (3 977 402)

Student and learner general expenses     (6 156 234)  (2 886 117)

Telephone and fax      (81 437)  (82 605)

Training      (38 402)  (7 975)

Travel - local      (10 694)  (22 146)

Travel - overseas      -  (44 128)

      (29 952 126)  (21 166 531)

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited
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